INDIAN WELLS VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT
Board of Directors Meeting

February 8, 2021

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2021 - 6:00 P.M.
TELECONFERENCE
NOTICE: In accordance with the evolving Public Health Declarations, we are limiting public
participation to online video conference calls. To join this meeting via video conference visit
WEBEX.com, click join in the upper right-hand corner, and input the meeting information as directed.
For further instructions use the provided link (https://help.webex.com/en-us/WBX77420/How-Do-I-Joinas-Guest-Using-Cisco-Webex-Meetings-Online) and read the directions under “To join as a guest”.
Meeting number: 182 049 9062
Password: board
(In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Lauren
Smith at (760) 384-5502. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one full business day
before the start of the meeting. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, any materials relating to
an open session item on this agenda, distributed to the Board of Directors after the distribution of the
agenda packet, will be made available for public inspection at the time of distribution at the following
location: Indian Wells Valley Water District, 500 W. Ridgecrest Blvd., Ridgecrest, CA).

1.

Call to Order

2.

Pledge of Allegiance

3.

Roll Call

4.

Posting of Agenda Declaration

5.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

6.

Public Questions and Comments
(This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on any matter
not on the agenda and over which the Board has jurisdiction. However, no action may be taken
by the Board of Directors on any item not appearing on the agenda. Non-agenda speakers are
asked to limit their presentation to five minutes. Public questions and comments on items listed
on the agenda will be accepted at any time the item is brought forth for consideration by the
Board. When you are recognized by the chairperson, please state your name and address for the
record).

7.

Presentation by Chris Brown of Fedak & Brown, LLC: 2019-2020 Audit Report
Description: Presentation of the final 2019-2020 Audit Report.

8.

Current Business/Committee Reports

A.

Consent Calendar
Description: Approval of Board Meeting Minutes and Accounts Payable
Disbursements.
1.
Approval of Minutes:
i.
January 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting
ii.
January 14, 2021 Special Board Meeting
iii.
January 27, 2021 Special Board Workshop
2.
Approval of Accounts Payable Disbursements

B.

Krieger & Stewart Engineering Consultants: 2021 Fee Schedule
Description: Board to consider accepting new fee schedule submitted by Krieger
& Stewart.

C.

Administration Executive Committee
1.
Resolution No. 21-01: Concurring in Nomination to the Executive
Committee of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA JPIA)
Description: Board to consider and make recommendation to nominate
incumbents: Tom Cuquet of South Sutter Water District, David Drake of
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District, Melody McDonald of San
Bernardino Valley Water Control District, and Randall Reed of
Cucamonga Valley Water District to ACWA JPIA’s Executive Committee
Committee recommends the following: Board support the nomination
of incumbent Randall Reed of Cucamonga Valley Water District to the
Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA.

D.

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority
Description: Report and discussion regarding the January 21, 2021 Regular
Board meeting of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority. Including,
Board discussion and consideration of issues of importance requiring action by
the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (IWVGA). Next meeting is
scheduled for February 10, 2021.

E.

General Manager and Staff Update (The Board will consider and may act on the
following items):
1.

Water Production, New Services, and Personnel Safety Record
Description: Water produced from all District wells, report of the new
services installed in the District, and personnel safety record for the
preceding month.

2.

Public Outreach
Description: Public Outreach Report.

3.

January 27, 2021 Special Board Workshop
Description: Updates on the items below assigned at the January 27,
2021 Special Board Workshop:
 Draft letter to IWVGA requesting consideration of an exemption
for the fees and additional water associated by the temporary
Berthing Camp to house contractors involved with the construction
on base.
 Address how brackish water would count toward the 7,650 acre-









feet of pumping within the framework of the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
As one option for recovering unpaid bills accruing because of the
Governor’s Executive Order prohibiting shutoff due to nonpayment, investigate putting delinquent bills on the County tax
rolls.
Send an email to Director Boyd confirming his nomination to the
JPIA committee so he can contact ACWA.
Finance Committee to discuss objectives to consider when the
District undertakes a new rate study. Committee to also discuss a
policy for new connections particularly regarding fees.
Add a link to the District’s website for a rebate programs offered
by SCE related to cooling.
Water Management Committee to develop a list of possible
options for grant funding to be submitted to the IWVGA when
they apply for grants, options that would benefit District customers

4.

Well 35 Update
Description: Update on the status of this project.

5.

Post-Earthquake Repairs
Description: Update on repairs associated with infrastructure damages
related to recent earthquakes.

6.

Financial Status
Description: Report on the District’s current financial status.

7.

Solar Production
Description: Update on solar production for the preceding month.

8.

Conservation
Description: Update on the Conservation Program and discussion on
water conservation related items.

9.

SCADA System
Description: Update on the SCADA System upgrade project.

10.

Arsenic Treatment Facilities: Update
Description: Staff will update Committee on maintenance issues and
planning for summer startup.

11.

Operations
Description: Staff report on operations.

9.

Board Comments/Future Agenda Items

10.

Closed Session
A.

Potential Litigation
Conference with Legal Counsel
3 Matters
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and (d)(4))

11.

B.

Existing Litigation
Conference with Legal Counsel
Mojave Pistachios, LLC v Indian Wells Valley Water District, et al.
Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-19-103265
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))

C.

Existing Litigation
Conference with Legal Counsel
Mojave Pistachios, LLC v Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, et al.
Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-20-102284
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))

D.

Existing Litigation
Conference with Legal Counsel
Searles Valley Minerals Inc., v Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority, et al.
Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-20-102285
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))

E.

Public Employee Performance Evaluation and Compensation
Position: General Manager
(Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957 and 54957.6)

Adjournment

7. Audit Report

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management Report
June 30, 2020

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management Report
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Board of Directors
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Ridgecrest, California
Dear Members of the Board:
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Indian Wells Valley Water District
(District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited period described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weakness. Given these limitations during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations
Our comments, all of which have been discussed with the appropriate members of management, are
summarized as follows:
Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications
As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications
as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.
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Summary of Current Year Comments and Recommendations, continued
Management’s Response
The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.
Summary of Comments and Recommendations Made in the Previous Year
Disclosure of Audit Adjustments and Reclassifications
As your external auditor, we assume that the books and records of the District are properly adjusted
before the start of the audit. In many cases, however, audit adjustments and reclassifications are made in
the normal course of the audit process to present the District’s financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America or for comparison purposes with
the prior year. For the Board of Directors to gain a full and complete understanding and appreciation of
the scope and extent of the audit process we have presented these audit adjustments and reclassifications
as an attachment to this letter. There can be very reasonable explanations for situations of having
numerous adjustments as well as having no adjustments at all. However, the issue is simply disclosure of
the adjustments and reclassifications that were made and to provide the Board of Directors with a better
understanding of the scope of the audit.
Management’s Response
The District has reviewed and approved all of the audit adjustment and reclassification entries provided
by the auditor and have entered those entries into the District’s accounting system.
**********
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee,
the board of directors and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution
of this letter, which is a matter of public record.
We appreciate the courtesy and cooperation extended to us during our examination. We would be pleased
to discuss the contents of this letter with you at your convenience. Please do not hesitate to contact us.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
February 8, 2021

APPENDIX
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Audit/Finance Committee Letter
June 30, 2020

Board of Directors
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Ridgecrest, California
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Indian Wells Valley Water
District (District) for the year ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if
applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020.
We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Management’s Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the basic financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
the basic financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the position in the basic
financial statements were:
Management’s estimate of the fair value of cash and investments is based on information provided by
financial institutions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of
cash and investments in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whole.
Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item’s useful life expectancy or cost recovery period. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the capital asset depreciation calculations in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Management’s estimate of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) plan: deferred outflows of
resources, total OPEB liability, and deferred inflows of resources are based on the alternative
measurement method to determine the liability balance. This alternative measurement method was
determined and prepared by the District’s third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the annual required contribution for the District to
determine that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
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Management’s Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Financial Disclosures, continued
Management’s estimate of the net pension liability is based on an actuarial evaluation of this liability
that was conducted by a third-party actuary. We evaluated the basis, actuarial methods and
assumptions used by the actuary to calculate the annual required contribution for the District to
determine that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Certain basic financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the basic financial statements are:
The disclosure of fair value of cash and investments in Note 2 to the basic financial statements
represents amounts susceptible to market fluctuations.
The disclosure of capital assets, net in Note 4 to the basic financial statements is based on historical
information which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.
The disclosure of the District’s net other post-employment benefits liability, in Note 7 to the basic
financial statements is based on information which could differ from those in future periods.
The disclosure of the District’s net pension liability in Note 8 to the basic financial statements is
based on actuarial assumptions which could differ from the actual liability.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, except those that are considered trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management as follows:
There were sixteen (16) audit adjustments and/or reclassification entries made to the original trial balance
presented to us to begin our audit. These journal entries were prepared by the auditor (see a listing of
those entries attached on pages 5 through 9 of this report).
Disagreements with Management
For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be
significant to the basic financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit of the District.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the Management
Representational Letter to the Auditor dated February 8, 2021.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves the
application of an accounting principle to the District’s basic financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditor. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.
Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis, which is required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
Restrictions on Use
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management
of the District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this letter, which is a matter of public
record.
Conclusion
We appreciate the cooperation extended us by Donald Zdeba, General Manager and Tyrell Staheli, Chief
Financial Officer, in the performance of our audit testwork.
We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the District.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
February 8, 2021
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Indian We lls Valle y Wate r District
Sche dule of Adjusting Journal Entrie s
June 30, 2020
Account

Description

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 1
AJE - To adjust unbilled receivable to calculation at June 30, 2020.
1-0-1371-100 Unbilled Water Sales Receivble
1-0-4110-100 Residential Usage
1-0-4110-101 Residential RTS
1-0-4110-300 Master-Metered Res. Usage
1-0-4110-301 Master-Metered Res. RTS
1-0-4110-400 Commercial/Public/Ind Usage
1-0-4110-401 Commercial/Public/Ind RTS
1-0-4110-600 Construction Water
1-0-4110-700 Fire Prevention
1-0-4110-800 GSA Pump Fee
1-0-4110-801 B-Zone Charge
1-0-4110-802 C-Zone Charge
1-0-4110-803 D-Zone Charge
1-0-4110-804 E-Zone Charge
1-0-4110-901 Arsenic Charge 3/4" Meter
1-0-4110-902 Arsenic Charge 1" Meter
1-0-4110-903 Arsenic Charge 1-1/2" Meter
1-0-4110-904 Arsenic Charge 2" Meter
1-0-4110-905 Arsenic Charge 3" Meter
1-0-4110-906 Arsenic Charge 4" Meter
1-0-4110-907 Arsenic Charge 6" Meter
1-0-4110-908 Arsenic Charge 8" Meter
Total

De bit

$

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2
AJE - To record OS Check written on 6/25 from 2018 COPS Cash account to
General Checking deposited 7/9/20.
1-0-1310-301 Mission Bank
1-0-1311-621 2018 BNY COP Project Funds
Total
$

Credit

440,534.63

440,534.63

124,236.53
131,685.82
18,115.93
13,614.50
46,802.39
20,686.70
80.49
4,504.47
9,708.00
3,200.13
1,927.11
439.14
2,767.49
51,689.23
3,448.04
774.62
3,587.26
381.97
782.62
1,196.87
905.32
440,534.63

781,011.36
781,011.36

781,011.36
781,011.36
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Indian We lls Valle y Wate r District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entrie s, continue d
June 30, 2020
Account

Description

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
AJE - To record interest receivable from Kern County accounts per June 30
statement.
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-4920-000 Interest Income
1-0-1373-000 Accrued Interest Receivable
1-0-4920-000 Interest Income
Total

De bit

$

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5
GASB 68 Entry #1 - To reclassify 2019 contributions to NPL at June 30,
2020.
1-0-2500-500 Net Pension Liability
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
Total

104.46
425.02
0.01
365.61
15,978.28
11,279.30
940.43
6,589.44
312.23
3.68

35,998.46

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4
AJE - To reverse prior year accrual of customer overpayments and reclass
current year overpayments from customer deposits to unearned revenue at
June 30, 2020.
1-0-2224-000 Unearned Revenue
1-0-2260-000 Customer Deposits
1-0-2224-000 Unearned Revenue
1-0-4110-100 Residential Usage
Total

Credit

3.68
35,994.78
35,998.46

71,196.48
86,118.36

157,314.84

86,118.36
71,196.48
157,314.84

299,379.00
$

299,379.00

299,379.00
299,379.00
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Indian We lls Valle y Wate r District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entrie s, continue d
June 30, 2020
Account

Description

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6
GASB 68 Entry #2 - To reclassify 2020 contributions to Deferred Outflows of
Resources at June 30, 2020.
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-1-4500-000 PERS ER Contributions
1-2-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
1-3-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
1-4-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
1-5-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
1-6-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
1-7-4500-000 PERS ER Contribution
Total
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 7
GASB 68 Entry #3 - To record changes in pension liability during FY18/19 at
June 30, 2019.
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-2500-000 Deferred Inflows
1-0-2500-000 Deferred Inflows
1-1-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-2-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-3-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-4-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-5-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-6-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-7-5641-000 Public Employees Retirement
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-2500-000 Deferred Inflows
1-0-2500-500 Net Pension Liability
Total

De bit

$

Credit

262,567.00

262,567.00

39,386.00
7,877.00
63,016.00
21,005.00
21,005.00
28,882.00
81,396.00
262,567.00

26,890.00
198,881.00
131,444.00
13,895.00
53,734.00
57,793.00
11,559.00
92,469.00
30,823.00
30,823.00
42,381.00
119,439.00

$

810,131.00

13,895.00
163,046.00
633,190.00
810,131.00
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Indian We lls Valle y Wate r District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entrie s, continue d
June 30, 2020
Account

Description

De bit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8
GASB 68 Entry #4 - To record changes in the deferred outflows and deferred
inflows (amortization) during FY18/19 at June 30, 2020.
1-0-2500-000 Deferred Inflows
$
1-1-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-2-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-3-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-4-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-5-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-6-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-7-5641-500 PERS Cost by Function
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-1500-000 Deferred Outflows
1-0-2500-000 Deferred Inflows
Total
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9
GASB 75 Entry #1 - To reclassify 2019 contributions to a reduction in Net
OPEB Liability at June 30, 2020.
1-0-2400-500 Net OPEB Liability
1-0-1501-000 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
Total

171,729.00
46,035.00
9,207.00
73,655.00
24,552.00
24,552.00
33,758.00
95,138.00

478,626.00

171,993.00
68,538.00
115,488.00
122,607.00
478,626.00

61,487.00
61,487.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 10
GASB 75 Entry #2 - To contra reclassify 2020 contributions for retiree
benefits to deferred outflows of resources from expense at June 30, 2020.
1-0-1501-000 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
1-9-5928-000 OPEB Expense
Total
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11
GASB 75 Entry #3 - To record changes in OPEB liability during FY19/20 in
the current year.
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-9-5928-000 OPEB Expense
1-0-1501-000 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
1-0-1501-000 Deferred Outflows - OPEB
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-0-2400-500 Net OPEB Liability
Total

Credit

61,487.00
61,487.00

79,259.00
79,259.00

79,259.00
79,259.00

451,704.00
1,090.00
998,318.00

$

1,451,112.00

451,704.00
1,090.00
603,686.00
1,293.00
12,145.00
381,194.00
1,451,112.00

Board of Directors
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Page 8
Indian We lls Valle y Wate r District
Schedule of Adjusting Journal Entrie s, continue d
June 30, 2020
Account

Description

De bit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12
GASB 75 Entry #4 - To record changes in the deferred outflows and deferred
inflows (amortization) at June 30, 2020.
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
$
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-0-2400-000 Deferred OPEB Inflows
1-9-5928-000 OPEB Expense
Total
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 13
AJE - To correct OPEB liability balance after GASB 75 adjustment.
1-9-5928-000 OPEB Expense
1-0-2400-500 Net OPEB Liability
Total

Le ge nd:
AJE
GASB 68 Entry
GASB 75 Entry

Audit Adjusting Entry
GASB 68 Implementation Adjusting Journal Entry
GASB 75 Implementation Adjusting Journal Entry

18,288.00

36,834.48

18,288.00
18,288.00

36,834.48
36,834.48

357,988.59
77,187.50

435,176.09

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 15
AJE - To adjust inventory to actual per review of support at June 30, 2020.
1-3-5429-100 Inventory Adjustment
1-0-1430-000 Inventory
Total

Total Adjusting Journal Entrie s

12.00
8,555.00
9,721.00

36,834.48

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 14
AJE - To accrue June construction related AP (check 65489 - 50% and check
65583) found during Search for Unrecorded Liabilities at June 30, 2020.
1-0-1115-820 WSIP Phase I New Well #35
1-0-1115-905 Disaster Repair - Gateway Bstr
1-0-2220-000 Accounts Payable
1-0-2220-000 Accounts Payable
Total

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 16
CPE - To accrue retention payment on Well 35 construction activity at June
30, 2020.
1-0-1115-820 WSIP Phase I New Well #35
1-0-2220-000 Accounts Payable
Total

Credit

357,988.59
77,187.50
435,176.09

108,967.03
108,967.03

108,967.03
108,967.03

18,841.50
$

18,841.50

18,841.50
18,841.50

$

5,475,527.39

5,475,527.39

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

History and Organization:
On January 24, 1955, the Ridgecrest County Water District was formed in accordance with Division
12, Section 30000-00901 of the California Water Code. The District was incorporated as a Political
Corporation on February 1, 1955, and established as a California public entity with authority to
construct, operate and maintain a community water works system, such as the District deems
necessary and proper. In January 1970, the name was changed to Indian Wells Valley Water District
to recognize that service had extended beyond the political boundaries of the City of Ridgecrest.
Service is provided to nearly 12,000-metered sites. Voters living within the District's boundaries
elect five Directors to govern the District. The District has a staff of 30 full-time regular employees.
The District operates strictly from water rate charges and fees for services and has no revenue from
taxes or federal sources. The District operates ten production wells, eleven water tanks that provide
for 17.1 million gallons of storage, and seven booster stations.
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Financial Section

Independent Auditor’s Report
Board of Directors
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Ridgecrest, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Indian Wells Valley Water District
(District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State Controller’s minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Independent Auditor’s Report, continued
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8 and the required supplementary information on pages 48
through 50 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 8,
2021, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance. This report can be found on pages 51 and 52.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
February 8, 2021
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of activities and financial performance
of the Indian Wells Valley Water District (District) provides an introduction to the financial statements of
the District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and related notes, which
follow this section.

Financial Highlights


In fiscal year 2020, the District’s net position decreased 3.48%, or $1,334,659 to $37,039,978,
due to a net loss of $2,043,928 from ongoing operations offset by $709,269 in capital
contributions. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s net position decreased 2.80%, or $1,104,390 to
$38,374,637, due to a net loss of $1,475,487 from ongoing operations offset by $371,097 in
capital contributions.



In fiscal year 2020, the District’s operating revenues increased 2.18% or $231,493 to
$10,860,421. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating revenues decreased 1.94% or $210,095
to $10,628,928.



In fiscal year 2020, the District’s operating expenses increased 19.89% or $1,438,808 to
$8,673,959. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating expenses increased 13.01% or $832,897
to $7,235,151.



In fiscal year 2020, the District’s non-operating revenues decreased 20.37% or $79,887 to
$312,252. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s non-operating revenues increased 71.91% or
$164,028 to $392,139.



In fiscal year 2020, the District’s non-operating expenses decreased 28.45% or $551,984 to
$1,388,239. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s non-operating expenses increased 62.21% or
$744,138 to $1,940,223.



In fiscal year 2020, the District’s capital contributions increased 91.13% or $338,172 to
$709,269. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s capital contributions decreased 59.13% or $536,836
to $371,097.

Required Financial Statements
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statements of Net Position, Statements
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Statements of Cash Flows provide information
about the activities and performance of the District using accounting methods similar to those used by
private sector companies.
The Statements of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and deferred
outflows of resources, and the obligations to creditors (liabilities) and deferred inflows of resources. It
also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District and
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. All of the current year’s revenue and
expenses are accounted for in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This
statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and can be used to
determine if the District has successfully recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This
statement can also be used to evaluate profitability and credit worthiness. The final required financial
statement is the Statements of Cash Flows, which provides information about the District’s cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statements of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash
payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, non-capital financing, and capital
and related financing activities and provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from,
what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Financial Analysis of the District
One of the most important questions asked about the District’s finances is, “Is the District better off or
worse off as a result of this year’s activities?” The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that helps
answer this question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
method used by most private sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when the cash is received or paid.
These two statements report the District’s net position and changes in it. One can think of the District’s
net position – the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources – as one way to measure the District’s financial health, or financial position. Over
time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health
is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial factors such as
changes in economic conditions, population growth, zoning and new or changed government legislation,
such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 14
through 47.

Statements of Net Position
Conde nsed Statements of Net Position
2020
Assets:
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets, net

$

Total asse ts
Defe rre d outflows of resource s
Liabilitie s:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Defe rre d inflows of re sources
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

2019

Change

As Re state d
2018

Change

25,185,602
120,000
53,085,233

27,463,013
120,000
51,654,079

(2,277,411)
1,431,154

16,662,946
420,000
52,255,505

10,800,067
(300,000)
(601,426)

78,390,835

79,237,092

(846,257)

69,338,451

9,898,641

823,725

1,308,258

(484,533)

885,064

423,194

2,651,712
39,056,744

2,452,914
39,444,010

198,798
(387,266)

2,772,483
27,634,576

(319,569)
11,809,434

41,708,456

41,896,924

(188,468)

30,407,059

11,489,865

466,126

273,789

17,762,879
10,063,771
9,213,328

15,282,058
14,900,810
8,191,769

37,039,978

38,374,637

192,337

395,080

(121,291)

2,480,821
(4,837,039)
1,021,559

27,110,846
3,097,355
9,270,826

(11,828,788)
11,803,455
(1,079,057)

(1,334,659)

39,479,027

(1,104,390)

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $37,039,978 and $38,374,637 as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Statements of Net Position, continued
Compared to prior year, net position of the District decreased 3.48% or $1,334,659. The District’s total
net position is made up of three components: (1) Net investment in capital assets, (2) restricted net
position, and (3) unrestricted net position.
The largest portion of the District’s net position (48% and 40% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively) reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to
provide services to customers within the District’s service area; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending.
At the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the District showed a positive balance in its unrestricted net
position of $9,213,328 and $8,191,769, respectively, which may be utilized in future years. See note 11
for further information.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Conde nsed Stateme nts of Re venues, Expense s and Changes in Net Position
2020
Revenue:
Operating revenue
Non-operating revenue

$

2019

Change

As Re state d
2018

Change

10,860,421
312,252

10,628,928
392,139

231,493
(79,887)

10,839,023
228,111

(210,095)
164,028

Total revenue

11,172,673

11,021,067

151,606

11,067,134

(46,067)

Expe nse:
Operating expense
Depreciation
Non-operating expense

8,673,959
3,154,403
1,388,239

7,235,151
3,321,180
1,940,223

1,438,808
(166,777)
(551,984)

6,402,254
2,852,125
1,196,085

832,897
469,055
744,138

Total expense

13,216,601

12,496,554

720,047

10,450,464

2,046,090

Net income(loss) before capital

(2,043,928)

(1,475,487)

(568,441)

616,670

(2,092,157)

338,172

907,933

(536,836)

(230,269)

1,524,603

(2,628,993)

Capital contributions:

709,269

Change in net position

371,097

(1,334,659)

(1,104,390)

Ne t position, beginning of year
– as restated

38,374,637

39,479,027

(1,104,390)

37,954,424

1,524,603

Ne t position, end of year

37,039,978

38,374,637

(1,334,659)

39,479,027

(1,104,390)

$

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes of Net Position show how the District’s net position
changed during the fiscal years. In the case of the District, the change in net position decreased 3.48%, or
$1,334,659 to $37,039,978 in fiscal year 2020, due to a net loss of $2,043,928 from ongoing operations,
which was offset by $709,269 in capital contributions. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s net position
decreased 2.80%, or $1,104,390 to $38,374,637, due to net income of $1,475,487 from ongoing
operations and $317,097 in capital contributions.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued
A closer examination of the sources of changes in net position reveals that:
The District’s operating revenues increased 2.18%, or $231,493 to $10,860,421 in fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to increases of $331,687 in water consumption sales and $47,501 in zone charges, which
were offset by a decrease of $140,630 in ready-to-serve charges. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s
operating revenues decreased 1.94%, or $210,095 to $10,628,928, primarily due to decreases of $209,818
in ready-to-serve charges, $31,518 in other charges, $15,133 in arsenic compliance charges, which were
offset by increases of $30,989 in water consumption sales and $15,385 in zone charges.
The District’s non-operating revenues decreased 20.37%, or $79,887 to $312,252 in fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to decreases of $27,406 in gain on disposition of assets and $57,645 in other revenue. In
fiscal year 2019, the District’s non-operating revenues increased 71.91%, or $164,028 to $392,139,
primarily due to increases of $110,122 in investment earnings, $64,654 in other revenue, and $23,906 in
gain on disposition of assets, which were offset by a decrease of $36,654 in special assessment 87-1 for
debt service.
The District’s operating expenses increased 19.89%, or $1,438,808 to $8,673,959 in fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to increases of $1,031,292 in general and administrative, $312,836 in transmission and
distribution, $117,994 in water supply, $45,305 in customer service, and $42,761 in engineering, which
were offset by decreases of $53,486 in field services, $38,831 in legislative expenses, and $19,063 in
arsenic plant expenses. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s operating expenses increased 13.01%, or
$832,897 to $7,235,151, primarily due to increases of $632,768 in general and administrative, $190,941
in transmission and distribution, $50,802 in engineering, $50,737 in water supply, which were offset by
decreases of $49,709 in arsenic plant, $19,869 in field services, and $17,872 in customer service.
The District’s depreciation decreased 5.02%, or $166,777 to $3,154,403 in fiscal year 2020, primarily due
to the District’s ongoing maturation of depreciation in the current year. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s
depreciation increased 16.45%, or $469,055 to $3,321,180, primarily due to the District’s additions of
prior year assets beginning maturation of depreciation in that year.
The District’s non-operating expenses decreased 28.45%, or $551,984 to $1,388,239 in fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to decreases of $490,484 in debt issuance costs related to the issuance of the 2018
Certificates of Participation, $45,422 in interest expense sourcing from the District’s long-term debt, and
$16,078 in debt service costs. In fiscal year 2019, the District’s non-operating expenses increased
62.21%, or $744,138 to $1,940,223, primarily due to increases of $494,869 in debt issuance costs related
to the issuance of the 2018 Certificates of Participation and $247,339 in interest expense sourcing from
the District’s long-term debt.
The District’s capital contributions increased 91.13%, or $338,172 to $709,269 in fiscal year 2020,
primarily due to increases of $122,564 in capital facility fees, $142,195 in capital contributions from the
State, $52,104 in capital contributions for the Cash for Grass grant, and $38,514 in capital contributions
from developers, which were offset by a decrease of $17,205 in capital contributions from local sources.
In fiscal year 2019, the District’s capital contributions decreased 59.13%, or $536,836 to $371,097,
primarily due to decreases of $199,992 in capital contributions federal grants, $181,654 in capital facility
fees, $120,424 in capital contributions from local sources and $88,188 in capital contributions for the
Cash for Grass grant which were offset by an increase of $53,422 in capital contributions from
developers.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Capital Asset Administration
Changes in capital asset amounts for 2020 were as follows:
Balance
2019
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

Additions

Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2020

$

7,561,426
104,263,246
(60,170,593)

5,918,443
5,339,206
(3,154,403)

(6,672,092)
-

6,807,777
109,602,452
(63,324,996)

$

51,654,079

8,103,246

(6,672,092)

53,085,233

Changes in capital asset amounts for 2019 were as follows:
Balance
2018
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

$

5,910,996
103,359,585
(57,015,076)

$

52,255,505

Additions
2,554,300
1,076,324
(3,321,180)
309,444

Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2019

(903,870)
(172,663)
165,663

7,561,426
104,263,246
(60,170,593)

(910,870)

51,654,079

At the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to
$53,085,233 and $51,654,079 (net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. This investment in capital
assets includes land, transmission and distribution systems, buildings, equipment, vehicles and
construction-in-process. See note 4 for further information.

Debt Administration
Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2020 were as follows:
Balance
2019
Long-term debt:
COPs payable
Loans payable
Total long-term debt

Additions

Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2020

$

29,586,628
6,785,393

-

(748,658)
(301,009)

28,837,970
6,484,384

$

36,372,021

-

(1,049,667)

35,322,354

Changes in long-term debt amounts for 2019 were as follows:
Balance
2018
Long-term debt:
COPs payable
Loans payable
Total long-term debt

Additions

Transfers/
Deletions

Balance
2019

$

16,965,000
8,179,659

30,063,032
-

(17,441,404)
(1,394,266)

29,586,628
6,785,393

$

25,144,659

30,063,032

(18,835,670)

36,372,021

See note 6 for further information.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position
The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on the
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.
Management is unaware of any other conditions which could have a significant impact on the District’s
current financial position, net position or operating results based on past, present and future events.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and
other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition.
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to request
additional financial information, please contact the District’s Chief Financial Officer at 500 West
Ridgecrest Boulevard, Ridgecrest, California 93555 – (760) 375-5086.
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Basic Financial Statements

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Accrued interest receivable
Accounts receivable – water sales and services
Accounts receivable – other
Assessment bonds receivable – delinquient (note 3)
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

$

2019

12,333,148
10,082,374
40,963
1,386,350
75,266
123,517
484,846
659,138

10,294,286
14,920,330
33,042
1,276,534
54,149
145,124
127,366
612,182

25,185,602

27,463,013

120,000
6,807,777
46,277,456

120,000
7,561,426
44,092,653

Total non-current assets

53,205,233

51,774,079

Total assets

78,390,835

79,237,092

79,259
744,466

514,281
793,977

823,725

1,308,258

Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Mitigation deposit – California Department of Fish and Game
Capital assets – not being depreciated (note 4)
Capital assets, net – being depreciated (note 4)

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employment benefits outflows (note 7)
Deferred pension outflows (note 8)
Total deferred outflows of resources
Continued on next page
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Statements of Net Position, continued
June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Customer deposits and deferred revenue
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities – due within one year:
Compensated absences (note 5)
Bonds payable (note 6)
Loans payable (note 6)

$

2019

1,056,698
110,462
328,273
18,603
87,527

861,844
206,150
291,696
19,520
71,196

71,768
666,250
312,131

60,463
641,250
300,795

2,651,712

2,452,914

287,070
28,171,720
6,172,253
1,281,062
3,144,639

241,851
28,945,378
6,484,598
961,355
2,810,828

Total non-current liabilities

39,056,744

39,444,010

Total liabilities

41,708,456

41,896,924

170,546
295,580

24,504
249,285

466,126

273,789

17,762,879
10,063,771
9,213,328

15,282,058
14,900,810
8,191,769

37,039,978

38,374,637

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term liabilities – due in more than one year:
Compensated absences (note 5)
Bonds payable (note 6)
Loans payable (note 6)
Net other post-employment benefits liability (note 7)
Net pension liability (note 8)

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred other post-employment benefits inflows (note 7)
Deferred pension inflows (note 8)
Total deferred inflows
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (note 9)
Restricted for debt service (note 10)
Unrestricted (note 11)
Total net position

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Ope rating revenues:
Water consumption sales
Ready-to-serve charges
Arsenic compliance charges
Zone charges
Other charges for services

$

Total operating re venues
Ope rating expenses:
Water supply
Arsenic plant
Transmission and distribution
Field services
Engineering
Customer service
Legislative
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating income before depreciation expense
Depreciation expense – capital recovery
Operating (loss)income

2020

2019

4,012,325
4,574,376
1,753,200
199,504
321,016

3,680,638
4,715,006
1,755,612
152,003
325,669

10,860,421

10,628,928

1,150,462
185,001
1,663,391
453,794
420,496
453,245
89,396
4,258,174

1,032,468
204,064
1,350,555
507,280
377,735
407,940
128,227
3,226,882

8,673,959

7,235,151

2,186,462
(3,154,403)

3,393,777
(3,321,180)

(967,941)

Non-operating revenue (expense):
Special assessment 87-1 for debt service
Investment earnings
Rental revenue
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs
Debt service costs
Gain on disposition of assets
Other revenue
Total non-operating, net
Net loss before capital contributions
Capital contributions:
Capital facility fees
Capital contributions – State
Capital contributions – Cash for Grass grant
Capital contributions – developer
Capital contributions – local
Total capital contributions
Change in ne t position
Ne t position, beginning of year
Ne t position, end of year

$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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72,597

2,586
256,631
12,000
(1,378,598)
(4,385)
(5,256)
41,035

256,053
10,000
(1,424,020)
(494,869)
(21,334)
27,406
98,680

(1,075,987)

(1,548,084)

(2,043,928)

(1,475,487)

334,488
142,195
62,999
110,636
58,951

211,924
10,895
72,122
76,156

709,269

371,097

(1,334,659)

(1,104,390)

38,374,637

39,479,027

37,039,978

38,374,637

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services

$

Net cash provided by operating activitie s
Cash flows from capital and re late d financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from capital contributions
Special assessments for debt service
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 2018 Certificates of Participation
Defeasance of 2009 Certificates of Participation
Bond issuance costs 2018 Certificates of Participation
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Debt service costs on long-term debt
Net cash (use d in)provide d by capital
and re lated financing activities
Cash flows from inve sting activitie s:
Investment earnings
Net cash provided by investing activities
Ne t (de crease)increase in cash and cash equivalents

2019

10,835,431
(3,977,631)
(3,614,686)

10,754,672
(2,614,276)
(4,231,898)

3,243,114

3,908,498

(4,526,606)
650,318
24,193
(4,385)
(1,049,667)
(1,379,515)
(5,256)

(2,643,598)
294,941
565,730
30,063,032
(16,965,000)
(494,869)
(1,870,670)
(1,648,335)
(21,334)

(6,290,918)

7,279,897

248,710

253,484

248,710

253,484

(2,799,094)

11,441,879

25,214,616

13,772,737

$

22,415,522

25,214,616

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets – cash and cash equivalents

$

12,333,148
10,082,374

10,294,286
14,920,330

Total cash and cash equivale nts

$

22,415,522

25,214,616

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye ar
Re conciliation of cash and cash e quivalents to the statement
of financial position:

Continued on next page
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
2020
Re conciliation of operating (loss) income to ne t cash
provide d by operating activities:
Operating (loss) income

$

Adjustme nts to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash
provide d by operating activities:
Depreciation
Rental revenue
Loss on disposition of assets
Other revenue
Changes in asse ts, deferred outflows of re source s, liabilitie s,
and de ferred inflows of re source s:
(Increase)Decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable – water sales and services
Accounts receivable – other
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits

(967,941)

3,154,403
12,000
41,035

2019

72,597

3,321,180
10,000
27,406
98,680

(109,816)
(21,117)
(357,480)
(46,956)

60,683
(8,019)
324,855
1,132

(Increase)Decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Deferred other post-employment benefits outflows
Deferred pension outflows

435,022
49,511

(456,630)
91,087

Increase(Decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payables
Customer deposits and deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences
Net other post-employment benefits liability
Net pension liability

194,854
(95,688)
36,577
16,331
56,524
319,707
333,811

(22,009)
65,846
(134,202)
71,196
25,798
520,962
(40,773)

Increase(Decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred other post-employment benefits inflows
Deferred pension inflows

146,042
46,295

24,504
(145,795)

Total adjustments
Ne t cash provided by ope rating activitie s
Non-cash investing and financing transactions:
Change in fair market value of investments
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

13

4,211,055

3,835,901

$

3,243,114

3,908,498

$

6,689

1,771

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity
The Indian Wells Valley Water District (District) was formed for the purpose of furnishing potable water
within the District. The District was formed under the provisions of the County Water Act found in
Division 12 of the State of California Water Code. The District is located in Kern County and includes the
community of Ridgecrest and provides water to approximately 12,000 customers.
The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on the provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity. The
District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately elected governing board
that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election. Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially accountable. The
District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body
and: 1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District
is that the costs of providing water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges (water sales), capital grants and similar funding. Revenues and expenses
are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place.
Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Management, administration, and depreciation
expenses are also considered operating expenses. Other revenues and expenses not included in the above
categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
C. Financial Reporting
The District’s basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District solely operates as a
special-purpose government which means it is only engaged in business-type activities; accordingly,
activities are reported in the District’s proprietary fund.
The District has adopted the following GASB pronouncement in the current year:
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 95
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95 – Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this Statement is to provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished
by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation Guides that first
became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and
later.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred inflows and Net Position
1. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the basic financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.
2. Uncertainty
The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through mandated and
voluntary closings of businesses. While the disruption is currently expected to be temporary, there is
considerable uncertainty around the duration of the closings. However, the related financial impact on
District and the duration cannot be estimated at this time.
3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Substantially all of the District’s cash is invested in interest bearing accounts. The District considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
4. Investments
Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for
that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or
losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.
5. Fair Value Measurements
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset, as follows:


Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.



Level 2 – Valuation is based on directly observable and indirectly observable inputs. These
inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data through
correlation or market-corroborated inputs. The concept of market-corroborated inputs
incorporates observable market data such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable
at commonly quoted intervals.



Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs where assumptions are made based on
factors such as prepayment rates, probability of defaults, loss severity and other assumptions
that are internally generated and cannot be observed in the market.

6. Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts
The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management
deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and
write-off of those accounts.
7. Restricted Assets
Certain assets of the District are restricted for use by ordinance or debt covenant and, accordingly, are
shown as restricted assets on the accompanying statements of net assets. The District uses restricted
resources, prior to using unrestricted resources, to pay expenditures meeting the criteria imposed on
the use of restricted resources by a third party.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
8. Materials and Supplies Inventory
Materials and supplies inventory consist primarily of water meters, pipe and pipefittings for
construction and repair to the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is
valued at cost using the weighted-average method. Inventory items are charged to expense at the time
that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.
9. Prepaids
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the basic financial statements.
10. Capital Assets
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated
fair market value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or
losses are recognized.
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:





Transmission and distribution system – 30 to 35 years
Structures and improvements – 10 to 30 years
Vehicles and large equipment – 3 to 10 years
Office furniture and equipment – 3 to 10 years

11. Deferred Outflows of Resources
The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenditure) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for
reporting in this category:
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)


Deferred outflow which is equal to the employer contributions made after the measurement
date of the net other-postemployment benefits liability. This amount will be amortized-in-full
against the net other-postemployment benefits liability in the next fiscal year.
Pensions
 Deferred outflow which is equal to the employer contributions made after the measurement
date of the net pension liability. This amount will be amortized-in-full against the net pension
liability in the next fiscal year.
 Deferred outflow for the net differences between the actual and expected experience which
will be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the Plan.


Deferred outflow for the net changes in assumptions which will be amortized over a closed
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with pensions through the Plan.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
11. Deferred Outflows of Resources, continued
Pensions, continued
 Deferred outflow for the net change due to differences in the changes in proportions of the
net pension liability which will be amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the
Plan.
12. Compensated Absences
The District's personnel policies provide for accumulation of vacation and sick leave. Liabilities for
vacation and portions of sick leave are recorded when benefits are earned. Cash payment of unused
vacation is available to those qualified employees when retired or terminated.
13. Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s OPEB
plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit
payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:




Valuation Dates: June 30, 2019 and 2017
Measurement Dates: June 30, 2019 and 2018
Measurement Periods: July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

14. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and addition to/deduction
from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:
 Valuation Dates: June 30, 2018 and 2017
 Measurement Dates: June 30, 2019 and 2018
 Measurement Periods: July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 and July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
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(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
15. Deferred Inflows of Resources
The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of resources applicable to future periods and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for reporting in
this category:
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)




Deferred inflow for the changes in assumptions which will be amortized over a closed period
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with other-postemployment benefits through the Plan.
Deferred inflow for the differences between the actual and expected experience which will be
amortized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of
all employees that are provided with other-postemployment benefits through the Plan.



Deferred inflow for the difference in investment gains and losses of the other postemployment benefit plans’ fiduciary net position. This amount is amortized over a 5-year
period.
Pensions
 Deferred inflow for the net difference in projected and actual earnings on investments of the
pension plans fiduciary net position. This amount is amortized over a 5-year period.
 Deferred inflow for the net difference in actual and proportionate share of employer
contribution and net changes in proportion which will be amortized over a closed period
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with pensions through the Plan.
16. Net Position
The District follows the financial reporting requirements of the GASB and reports net position under
the following classifications:


Net Investment in Capital Assets – Investment in capital assets, net of related debt consists
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and reduced by
outstanding balances of any debt, or other long-term borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.



Restricted – Restricted consists of assets that have restrictions placed upon their use by
external constraints imposed either by creditors (debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws and regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through enabling
legislation.



Unrestricted – Unrestricted consists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of the net investment in capital assets or restricted component of net position.

17. Capital Contributions
Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property
owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures
or capacity commitment.
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(1)

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position, continued
18. Budgetary Policies
The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes.
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services.

(2)

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:
2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Total cash and investments

2019

$

12,333,148
10,082,374

10,294,286
14,920,330

$

22,415,522

25,214,616

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions

$

Total cash on hand and deposits
Deposits in Local Agency Investment Fund
Deposits in Kern County Investment Pool
Deposits in money market funds
Total investments
Total cash and cash equivalents

$

2020

2019

1,200
3,141,050

1,200
1,843,289

3,142,250

1,844,489

1,368,164
8,655,676
9,249,432

1,036,623
8,333,290
14,000,214

19,273,272

23,370,127

22,415,522

25,214,616

As of June 30, the District's authorized deposits had the following maturities:
Deposits in Local Agency Investment Fund
Deposits in Kern County Investment Pool

2020

2019

191 days
529 days

173 days
580 days

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy
The District is legally empowered by statute and resolution to invest in money-market funds and to invest
in the California State Investment Pool – Local Agency Investment Fund and the Kern County Investment
Pool. The District’s investment policy identifies other investment types that are authorized for the District
to invest in under the California Government Code.
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(2)

Cash and Investments, continued

Investment in State Investment Pool
The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair
value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based
on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
The pool portfolio is invested in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity
requirements set forth by GASB 79 for external investment pools that elect to measure, for financial
reporting purposes, investments at amortized cost. LAIF does not have any legally binding guarantees of
share values. LAIF does not impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.
Investment in Kern County Investment Pool
The Kern County Treasurer’s Pooled Cash Portfolio (Pool) is a pooled investment fund program
governed by the Kern County Board of Supervisors and administered by the Kern County Treasurer and
Tax Collector. Investments in the Pool are highly liquid as deposits and withdrawals can be made at any
time without penalty. The Pool does not impose a maximum investment limit.
The Kern County’s bank deposits are either federally insured or collateralized in accordance with the
California Government Code. Pool detail may be obtained from the Kern County Treasurer and Tax
Collector’s website at www.kcttc.co.kern.ca.us.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the
District’s investment policy does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to
custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits.
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. Of the bank balances, up to $250,000 held at each institution were federally insured and the
remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the Code; however, the collateralized securities are
not held in the District’s name.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The Code and the District’s investment
policy contain legal and policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF and the
Pool).
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Cash and Investments, continued

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest rates.
At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District’s investments held to maturity were categorized as twelve months
or less, respectively.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.
Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Investment Types

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Kern County Investment Pool
Money Market Funds

$

1,368,164
8,655,676
9,249,432

Total

$

19,273,272

Rating as of Year End
Not
AAA
Rated

Minimum
Legal
Rating
N/A
N/A
AAA

$

$
9,249,432

1,368,164
8,655,676
-

$

9,249,432 $

10,023,840

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Investment Types

Total

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Kern County Investment Pool
Money Market Funds

$

1,036,623
8,333,290
14,000,214

Total

$

23,370,127

Minimum
Legal
Rating
N/A
N/A
AAA

Rating as of Year End
Not
AAA
Rated
$

$
14,000,214

1,036,623
8,333,290
-

$

14,000,214 $

9,369,913

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District’s investment policy contains no limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
issuer as beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no investments in any
one issuer (other than for external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District’s
investments at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Cash and Investments, continued

Fair Value Measurements
Investments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Inve stment Type
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds

Total
$

Total investments measured at fair value
Investments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Kern County Investment Pool
Total

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Obse rvable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Le vel 1)
(Level 2)
(Leve l 3)

9,249,432

9,249,432

-

-

9,249,432

9,249,432

-

-

1,368,164
8,655,676
$

19,273,272

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring and non-recurring basis at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Inve stment Type
Held by bond trustee:
Money market funds

Total
$

Total investments measured at fair value
Investments measured at amortized cost:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Kern County Investment Pool
Total

14,000,214

14,000,214

-

-

14,000,214

14,000,214

-

-

1,036,623
8,333,290
$

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Significant
Markets for
Obse rvable
Unobservable
Identical Assets
Inputs
Inputs
(Le vel 1)
(Level 2)
(Leve l 3)

23,370,127
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Assessment Bonds Receivable

The District has elected to hold the AD 87-1 Assessment District Bonds rather than sell them on the open
market. Since the District has "invested" in these bonds, they are entitled to receive all revenue relating to
the Assessment District Bonds.
The assessment bonds receivable payment schedules at June 30 are as follows:

2020
Assessment bonds receivable – current and delinquent
Total assessments bonds receivable, net

2019

$

123,517

145,124

$

123,517

145,124

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the AD 87-1 Assessment District Bonds had been paid-in-full. The remaining
balance represents the delinquent portion of the assessment bonds receivable balance. The balances were
determined collectible at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

(4)

Capital Assets

Major capital assets additions during the years include upgrades and extensions of the District’s water
transmission and distribution systems and equipment purchases in the following schedules:
Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2019
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights
Construction-in-process

$

Total non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system
Production and source of supply
General plant
Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Depreciable assets
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets, net

$

Additions/

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2020

2,870,035
4,691,391

5,918,443

(6,672,092)

2,870,035
3,937,742

7,561,426

5,918,443

(6,672,092)

6,807,777

57,997,385
32,200,305
14,065,556

4,012,392
603,766
723,048

-

62,009,777
32,804,071
14,788,604

104,263,246

5,339,206

-

109,602,452

(60,170,593)

(3,154,403)

-

(63,324,996)

(60,170,593)

(3,154,403)

-

(63,324,996)

44,092,653

2,184,803

-

46,277,456

51,654,079

8,103,246

23

(6,672,092)

53,085,233
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Capital Assets, continued

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2018
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights
Construction-in-process

$

Total non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets:
Transmission and distribution system
Production and source of supply
General plant
Total depreciable assets
Accumulated depreciation:
Depreciable assets
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets, net

(5)

$

Additions/

Deletions/
Transfers

Balance
2019

2,787,233
3,123,763

82,802
2,471,498

(903,870)

2,870,035
4,691,391

5,910,996

2,554,300

(903,870)

7,561,426

57,199,411
32,167,586
13,992,588

797,974
32,719
245,631

(172,663)

57,997,385
32,200,305
14,065,556

103,359,585

1,076,324

(172,663)

104,263,246

(57,015,076)

(3,321,180)

165,663

(60,170,593)

(57,015,076)

(3,321,180)

165,663

(60,170,593)

46,344,509

(2,244,856)

52,255,505

309,444

(7,000)

44,092,653

(910,870)

51,654,079

Compensated Absences

Changes to compensated absences for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2019
$

302,314

Earne d
298,053

Balance
2020

Take n
(241,529)

Curre nt
Portion

358,838

71,768

Long-te rm
Portion
287,070

Changes to compensated absences for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2018
$

276,516

Earne d
351,699

Balance
2019

Take n
(325,901)

24

302,314

Curre nt
Portion
60,463

Long-te rm
Portion
241,851
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Long-term Debt

Changes in long-term debt amounts for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2019
Bonds payable:
2018 Certificates of participation
$
Premium on issuance - 2018 Series
Total bonds payable
Loans payable:
Mission Bank – 2016 loan
Total loans payable
Total long-term debt

$

Additions

Payments

Balance
2020

Current
Portion

Long-term
Portion

26,391,250
3,195,378

-

(641,250)
(107,408)

25,750,000
3,087,970

666,250
-

25,083,750
3,087,970

29,586,628

-

(748,658)

28,837,970

666,250

28,171,720

6,785,393

-

(301,009)

6,484,384

312,131

6,172,253

6,785,393

-

(301,009)

6,484,384

312,131

6,172,253

36,372,021

-

(1,049,667)

35,322,354

978,381

34,343,973

Changes in long-term debt amounts for the year ended June 30 were as follows:
Balance
2018
Bonds payable:
2009 Certificates of participation
$
2018 Certificates of participation
Premium on issuance - 2018 Series
Total bonds payable
Loans payable:
State of California Prop 55 loan
Mission Bank – 2016 loan
Total loans payable
Total long-term debt

$

Additions

Payme nts

Balance
2019

Curre nt
Portion

Long-term
Portion

16,965,000
-

26,805,000
3,258,032

(16,965,000)
(413,750)
(62,654)

26,391,250
3,195,378

641,250
-

25,750,000
3,195,378

16,965,000

30,063,032

(17,441,404)

29,586,628

641,250

28,945,378

532,865
7,646,794

-

(532,865)
(861,401)

6,785,393

300,795

6,484,598

8,179,659

-

(1,394,266)

6,785,393

300,795

6,484,598

(18,835,670)

36,372,021

942,045

35,429,976

25,144,659

30,063,032

2018 Series Certificates of Participation – Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
On November 13, 2018, the District issued 2018 Series Certificates of Participation Water Revenue
Bonds, not to exceed $38,000,000 for the purpose of advance refunding its outstanding 2009 Series
Certificates of Participation Water Revenue Bonds and to finance new capital improvement projects. As a
result of the refunding, the District’s 2009 Certificates of Participation issue is considered defeased and
the liability for that obligation has been removed from the District’s financial statements. The District
completed the advance refunding to reduce the District’s total debt service payments over a 20-year
period by a present-value amount of approximately $2.905 million to obtain an economic gain of
approximately $3.831 million.
The certificates-of-participation are scheduled to mature in fiscal year 2049. An interest rate premium in
the amount of $3,258,032 was calculated on the issuance of the refunding revenue bonds and will be
amortized over the life of the debt. Principal and interest are payable in monthly installments due on the
1st of each month at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% with monthly principal installments ranging from
$43,333 to $129,583.
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Long-term Debt, continued

2018 Series Certificates of Participation – Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, continued
Future long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Year
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040
2041-2045
2046-2049

Principal
$

Total
Current

Total

666,250
688,750
710,000
747,500
780,000
4,527,500
5,812,500
6,078,750
3,028,750
2,710,000

1,228,150
1,201,500
1,172,200
1,136,700
1,099,325
4,871,875
3,616,750
2,020,813
930,000
264,600

1,894,400
1,890,250
1,882,200
1,884,200
1,884,200
9,392,126
9,431,125
9,192,312
3,958,500
3,766,800

25,750,000

17,541,913

45,176,113

(666,250)

Bond premium
Long-term

Interest

3,087,970
$

28,171,720

2009 Series Certificated of Participation – Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
Proceeds of the Series 2009 certificates-of-participation (COPs) were used to finance arsenic treatment
facilities and expansion of the District's existing water system to create operating efficiency and enhance
fire flow. The arsenic project included construction of arsenic treatment facilities with related pipelines
for water mixing and distribution to comply with federal and state arsenic standards. The water supply
improvements include upgrading two of the existing well pumps and constructing one new reservoir with
related pipelines. A portion of the COPs were used to prepay the District's Series 1999A California
Statewide Communities Development Authority revenue bonds, and to pay issuance costs for the COPs.
Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2009: Payable in semi-annual installments based on a
30 year amortization with interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.25%.
On November 13, 2018, the District refinanced the 2009 Series Certificates of Participation Water
Revenue Bonds. The debt was defeased with the 2018 Series Certificates of Participation Water Revenue
Bonds.
Mission Bank – 2016 Loan
On April 1, 2016, the District entered into a loan agreement to receive an $8,000,000 loan from Mission
Bank to provide construction related expenditure costs related to the Solar Power Facility project. Terms
of the agreement call for annual payments including interest at 3.50% maturing in fiscal year 2036.
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Long-term Debt, continued

Mission Bank – 2016 Loan, continued
Future long-term debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Ye ar
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036

Principal
$

Total

Total

312,131
323,232
334,729
346,123
358,944
1,995,155
2,376,286
437,784

222,001
210,900
199,403
188,009
175,188
675,505
294,374
7,083

534,132
534,132
534,132
534,132
534,132
2,670,660
2,670,660
444,867

6,484,384

1,972,463

8,456,847

Current
Long-term

Inte rest

(312,131)
$

6,172,253

State of California Proposition 55 Loan
State of California-Safe Drinking Water Act Loan (Prop. 55): Payable in semi-annual installments of
$139,757 including interest at 3.3712%. Loan proceeds to improve Ridgecrest Heights Water SystemTotal loan was $5,250,000. At June 30, 2019, the District had paid the remaining loan balance in the
amount $532,865 and therefore the loan has been repaid in-full.

(7)

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

General Information about the OPEB Plan
Plan Description
The District provides other post-employment benefits (OPEB) to qualified employees who retire from the
District and meet the District’s vesting requirements. The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit OPEB
plan administered by the District. The District’s Board has the authority to establish and amend the
benefit terms and financing requirements of the Plan. The District participates in CalPERS California
Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust Program (CERBT), a Prefunding Plan trust fund intended to perform an
essential government function within the meaning of Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code. Copies
of CalPERS CERBT audited financial report may be obtained from their executive Office: 400 P Street,
Sacramento, CA 95814. The new reporting requirements for these benefit programs as they pertain to the
District are set forth below.
Benefits Provided
The District provides post-employment health care benefits to all employees who retire from the District
and meet certain eligibility requirements. Retirees may enroll in any plan available through CalPERS
medical, dental and vision programs. The contribution requirements of Plan members and the District are
established and may be amended by the Board of Directors.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

General Information about the OPEB Plan, continued
Benefits Provided, continued
To be eligible for retiree health benefits, an employee must retire from the District on or after age 55 with
at least 15 years of District service. As of June 30, 2020, the District’s contribution was $700 per month
for eligible employees regardless of the year in which the employee retired. As of June 30, 2019, the
District’s contribution was $700 per month for eligible employees retiring on or after July 1, 2013; $400
per month for eligible employees that retired between July 1, 2007 and June 30, 2013; and $350 per
month for eligible employees that retired prior to July 1, 2007.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At June 30 the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

2020
Active plan members
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits
Separated plan members entitled to but not
yet receiving benefits
Total Plan membership

2019
31
9

29
9

-

-

40

38

Contributions
The Plan and its contribution requirements for eligible retired employees of the District are established
and may be amended by the Board of Directors. The District pays 100% of the cost of health insurance
for retirees under any group plan offered by CalPERS, subject to certain restrictions as determined by the
District. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution.
As of the fiscal year ended June 30, the contributions were as follows:

2020
Contributions – employer

$

79,529

2019
61,487

As of June 30 2020 and 2019, employer’s pension contributions of $79,529 and $61,487 reported as
deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be/were
recognized as a reduction of net OPEB liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.
Net OPEB Liability
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total net liability used to
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. Standard
actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The net OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:
The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods:
Inflation

2.75 percent

Salary increases

2.75 percent, average, including inflation

Discount rate

7.00 percent - 2019
5.00 percent - 2018

Healthcare cost trend rates

4.00 percent

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs 100 percent of the District's share of projected health insurance
premiums for retirees age 55 with a minimum 15 years of service
hired before July 1, 2013.
100 percent of the District's share of projected health insurance
premiums for retirees age 60 with a minimum 15 years of service
hired on or after January 1, 2013.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 7.00 percent and 5.00 percent at June 30,
2020, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building-block method in which bestestimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The asset class percentages were taken
from the current composition of the CERBT trust, and the expected yields were taken form a CalPERS
publication for the Pension Fund. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in the OPEB plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following
table:

Asset Class
US Large Cap
US Small Cap
Long-Term Corporate Bonds
Long-Term Government Bonds
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS)
US Real Estate
All Commodities
Total

New
Strategic
Allocation

Assumed
Gross
Return

43.0%
23.0%
12.0%
6.0%
5.0%
8.0%
3.0%

7.795%
7.795%
5.295%
4.500%
7.795%
7.795%
7.795%

100.0%
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
Changes in net OPEB liability amounts for the year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Balance at be ginning of ye ar

Total OPEB
Liability

Fiduciary
Ne t Position

Net OPEB
Liability

1,955,811

994,456

961,355

43,624
97,754
(61,487)
16,420
(17,713)
(603,686)
906,443
-

49,717
(214)
61,487
(61,487)
12,145

43,624
97,754
(49,717)
214
(61,487)
16,420
(17,713)
(603,686)
906,443
(12,145)

381,355

61,648

319,707

2,337,166

1,056,104

1,281,062

$

Change s for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Expected investment income
Administrative expense
Employer contributions
Actual benefit payments
Expected minus actual benefit payments
Experience (gains)/losses
Changes in assumption
Changes in benefit terms
Investment gains/(losses)
Net change s
Balance at end of ye ar

$

Changes in net OPEB liability amounts for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Balance at be ginning of ye ar

Total OPEB
Liability

Fiduciary
Ne t Position

Net OPEB
Liability

1,400,889

960,496

440,393

42,456
70,031
485,414
(44,151)
1,172
-

46,906
30,630
(1,787)
(44,151)
1,172
1,190

42,456
70,031
485,414
(46,906)
(30,630)
1,787
(1,190)

554,922

33,960

520,962

1,955,811

994,456

961,355

$

Change s for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Assumption changes
Expected investment income
Investment gains/losses
Administrative expense
Expected benefit payments
Actual minus expected benefit payments
Other **
Net change s
Balance at end of ye ar

$

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1percentage-point higher than the current discount rate.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, continued
At June 30, 2020, the discount rate comparison was the following:
Current
Discount
Rate
7.00%

Discount
Rate - 1%
6.00%
District's Net OPEB liability

1,602,406

Discount
Rate + 1%
8.00%

1,281,062

1,013,778

At June 30, 2019, the discount rate comparison was the following:
Discount
Rate - 1%
4.00%
District's Net OPEB liability

1,307,932

Current
Discount
Rate
5.00%

Discount
Rate + 1%
6.00%

961,355

720,815

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s net OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower
or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates.
At June 30, 2020, the healthcare cost trend rate comparison was the following:

1% Decrease
3.00%
District's Net OPEB liability

1,050,559

Current
Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rate
4.00%

1% Increase
5.00%

1,281,062

1,550,740

At June 30, 2019, the healthcare cost trend rate comparison was the following:

1% Decrease
3.00%
District's Net OPEB liability

731,537

Current
Healthcare
Cost Trend
Rate
4.00%

1% Increase
5.00%

961,355

1,258,674

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $980,030 and
$150,323, respectively.
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Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan, continued

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB
At June 30, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:
June 30, 2020
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

Description
OPEB contributions subsequent
to the measurement date at June 30

$

79,259

June 30, 2019
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

-

61,487

-

Changes in assumptions

-

(142,261)

451,704

-

Differences between actual and expected
experience

-

(191)

1,090

-

Investment gains and losses

-

(28,094)

-

(24,504)

79,259

(170,546)

514,281

(24,504)

Total

$

At June 30, 2020, amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB to be recognized in OPEB expense in future periods:
Net, Deferred
Outflows/
(Inflows)
of Resources

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$

(18,288)
(18,288)
(18,288)
(12,162)
(9,733)
(93,787)

Total

$

(170,546)

Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
See page 48 for the Required Supplementary Schedule.

(8)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Descriptions
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions
under the Plan are established by State statute and the District’s resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Benefits Provided
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are
eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living
adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
On September 12, 2012, the California Governor signed the California Public Employees’ Pension
Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) into law. PEPRA took effect January 1, 2013. The new legislation closed
the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 60 Risk Pool Retirement Plan to new employee entrants effective
December 31, 2012. All employees hired after January 1, 2013, are eligible for the District’s CalPERS
2.0% at 62 Retirement Plan under PEPRA. New employees that have previously participated in the
Classic Plan are eligible for the District’s CalPERS 2.0% at 60 Retirement Plan.
The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:
Miscellaneous Plan
Tie r 1
Tier 2
Prior to
On or after
January 1,
January 1,
2013
2013

Hire date
Benefit formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

2.0% @ 60
2.0% @ 62
5 years of service 5 years of servic
monthly for life monthly for life
55 - 60
52 - 67
1.5% to 2.4%
1.0% to 2.5%
6.915%
6.750%
8.081%
6.985%

Contributions
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers to be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1, following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30, by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Contributions, continued
As of the fiscal years ended June 30, the contributions for the Plan were as follows:
Misce llaneous Plan
2020
2019
Contributions – employer
Contributions – employee (paid by employer)
Total employer paid contributions

$

262,567
40,500

299,379
146,529

$

303,067

445,908

Net Pension Liability
As of the fiscal years ended June 30, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability of the Plan was as follows:
Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability

Miscellaneous Plan

$

2020

2019

3,144,639

2,810,828

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30 2018, rolled forward to June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2017, rolled forward to June
30, 2018, respectively, using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.
The District’s changes in the proportionate share of the pension liability for the District’s Plan as of the
fiscal years ended June 30, were as follows:
Misce llaneous Plan
2020
2019
Proportion – Beginning of year
Proportion – End of year

0.02917%
0.03069%

0.02875%
0.02917%

Change – Increase (Decrease)

0.00152%

0.00042%

Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) of Resources
As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $692,184 and $203,898,
respectively.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) of Resources, continued
As of the fiscal years ended June 30, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
June 30, 2020
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

Description
Pension contributions subsequent
to the measurement date

$

Net differences between actual and expected
experience
Net changes in assumptions

June 30, 2019
Deferred
Deferred
Outflows of
Inflows of
Resources
Resources

262,567

-

299,379

-

201,484

-

71,144

-

96,795

-

241,898

-

Net differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments

-

(54,978)

13,895

Net differences between actual contribution
and proportionate share of contribution

-

(240,602)

-

Net adjustment due to differences in
proportions of net pension liability
Total

183,620
$

744,466

(295,580)

(249,285)

167,661
793,977

(249,285)

As of June 30 2020 and 2019, employer pension contributions of $262,567 and $299,379, were reported
as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will
be/were recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively.
As of June 30, 2020, the District recognized other amounts reported by the Plan actuarial as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension liability. Pension related
amounts will be recognized as pension expense as follows.
Deferred Net
Outflows /
(Inflows) of
Resources

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

$
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 and 2018, actuarial valuation reports were determined
using the following actuarial assumptions:
Valuation dates
Measurement dates
Actuarial cost method
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment Rate of Return
Mortality Rate Table*
Period upon which actuarial
Experience Survey
assumptions were based
Post Retirement Benefit

June 30, 2018 and 2017
June 30, 2019 and 2018
Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 68
7.15%
2019 and 2018 – 2.50%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
7.50 % Net of Pension Plan Investment and
Administrative Expenses; includes inflation
Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds Contract

2018 and 2018 – 1997-2015
2019 and 2018 – COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.75%
thereafter

* The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The table includes 20 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer
to the April 2014 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to
2011) available online at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/calpers-experience-study2014.pdf.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the Plan. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for the Plan, the
amortization and smoothing periods recently adopted by CalPERS were utilized. The crossover test was
performed for a miscellaneous agent plan and a safety agent plan selected as being more at risk of failing
the crossover test and resulting in a discount rate that would be different from the long-term expected rate
of return on pension investments.
Based on the testing of the plans, the tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability for the Plan.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Discount Rate, continued
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and longterm returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation.
At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class was as follows:

Asset Class
Global Equity
Global Fixed Income
Inflation Sensitive
Private Equity
Real Estate
Liquidity
Total

New
Strategic
Allocation

Real Return
Years 1–10*

Real Return
Year 11+**

50.00%
28.00%
0.00%
8.00%
13.00%
1.00%

4.80%
1.00%
0.77%
6.30%
3.75%
0.00%

5.98%
2.62%
1.81%
7.23%
4.93%
-0.92%

100.0%

* An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
** An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net position liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate, as well as what the District’s proportional share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate:
At June 30, 2020, the discount rate comparison was the following:
Discount
Rate
1% De crease
6.15%
District's Net pension liability

$
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5,068,655

Current
Discount
Rate
7.15%
3,144,639

Discount
Rate
1% Increase
8.15%
1,556,500
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Defined Benefit Pension Plan, continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate,
continued
At June 30, 2019, the discount rate comparison was the following:
Discount
Rate
1% De crease
6.15%
District's Net pension liability

$

Discount
Rate
1% Increase
8.15%

Current
Discount
Rate
7.15%

4,661,357

2,810,828

1,283,246

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
CalPERS financial reports. See pages 49 and 50 for the Required Supplementary Schedules.
Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District reported no payables for the outstanding amount of contribution
to the pension plan, respectively.

(9)

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Calculation of net investment in capital assets as of June 30 were as follows:
2020
Capital assets:
Capital assets – not being depreciated
Capital assets, net – being depreciated
Current:
Certificates-of-participation
Loans payable
Non-current:
Certificates-of-participation
Loans payable

$

Total net investment in capital assets

6,807,777
46,277,456

2019
7,561,426
44,092,653

(666,250)
(312,131)

(641,250)
(300,795)

(28,171,720)
(6,172,253)

(28,945,378)
(6,484,598)

17,762,879

15,282,058

$

(10) Restricted Net Position
Calculation of restricted net position as of June 30 was as follows:

2020
Restricted – cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest payable
Total restricted net position
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2019

$

10,082,374
(18,603)

14,920,330
(19,520)

$

10,063,771

14,900,810
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(11) Unrestricted net Position
Unrestricted net position as of June 30 were categorized as follows:
2020
Non-spendable net position:
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid expenses and other deposits
Mitigation deposit – California Department of
Fish and Game

$

Total non-spendable net position
Spendable net position are designated as follows:
Capital replacement reserve
Rate stabilization reserve
Total spendable net position
Total unrestricted net position

$

2019

484,846
659,138

127,366
612,182

120,000

120,000

1,263,984

859,548

5,299,563
2,649,781

4,888,147
2,444,074

7,949,344

7,332,221

9,213,328

8,191,769

(12) Deferred Compensation Savings Plan
For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in two Deferred Compensation Programs
(Programs): A 457 plan and a 401(a) plan. The purpose of these Programs is to provide deferred
compensation for public employees that elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees
may defer receipt of a portion of their salary until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. Until the funds are paid or otherwise made available to the employee, the employee is not
obligated to report the deferred salary for income tax purposes.
Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the
participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation. Therefore, these assets are
not the legal property of the District and are not subject to claims of the District’s general creditors. For
the District’s 457 plan, the market value of all plan assets held in trust by Mutual of America at June 30,
2020 and 2019, was $2,465,805 and $2,375,590, respectively. For the District’s 401(a) plan, the market
value of all plan assets held in trust by Mutual of America at June 30, 2020 and 2019, was $5,812 and $0
respectively.
The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Since the District has little administrative
involvement and does not perform the investing function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are
not shown on the statements of net position.

(13) Debt without District Commitment
Special Assessment Districts
The District maintains two Assessment Districts. These Assessment Districts were established under the
Municipal Improvement Act of 1913 and partially financed with the 1951 Improvement Act bonds.
Accounting for these Assessment Districts follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 6, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Special Assessments. GASB No. 6 states that
enterprise funds, such as that of the District, are to account for special assessment financing debt on the
books of the District only if one of the following conditions exists:
1. The District is directly liable for the special assessment debt.
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(13) Debt without District Commitment, continued
Special Assessment Districts, continued
2. The District is not directly liable for the special assessment debt, but the debt is expected to be
repaid from revenues of the District.
Since the District is not directly liable for the Assessment District debt and it is expected all such debt
will be repaid from landowner assessments and not District revenues, the special assessment debt is not
included in the District's financial statements. The District acts solely as an agent for the bondholders in
collecting and forwarding the special assessments.
Assessment District No. 87-1
The District acquired the Ridgecrest Heights Water System during the 1988 fiscal year. In order to
finance the construction of the estimated $6,741,000 of required improvements the District formed
Assessment District 87-1 on June 14, 1989. The District holds the Assessment District Bonds and did not
sell them on the open market. Bond principal and interest revenues will be used to repay loans received to
finance construction from the State of California. At June 30, 2020, the bond debt service was paid-infull.
Assessment District No. 91-1
Assessment District 91-1 consists of approximately 300 acres of land subdivided into 133 residential lots
contiguous to the southwesterly boundary of the City of Ridgecrest, California. The District formed
Assessment District 91-1 on January 15, 1992, for the design and construction of a domestic water system
for the property within the Assessment District. The cost of this construction was estimated at $1,508,000.
Total assessments were $1,508,000 and $237,551 was collected during the cash collection period which
ended February 15, 1992.
The remaining unpaid assessments of $1,270,449 were bonded and these limited obligation improvement
bonds were sold on July 13, 1992. On August 23, 2001, the District approved resolution 01-05 under the
California Streets and Highways Code Section 8771, 8772 and 8773, that the terms and conditions of the
bond repayment schedule be modified as of June 30, 2008. The outstanding bonds and interest due to the
bond holder were paid under the modified payment schedule. As of June 30, 2020, Assessment District
91-1 did not hold a cash balance in the Kern County Treasury. These funds are available for District
expenses/improvements with the appropriate Board action/approvals.

(14) Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the
Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California special districts. The purpose of the
SDRMA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance
coverage.
At June 30, 2020, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the SDRMA as
follows:


General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk
financing self-insurance limits of $2,500,000, combined single limit at $2,500,000 per
occurrence. The District purchased additional excess coverage layers: to a combined total
coverage limit of $10,000,000 for general, auto and public officials’ liability, increasing the limits
on the insurance coverage noted above. Deductibles: General Liability Property Damage- $500,
Auto Liability Property Damage - $1,000
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(14) Risk Management, continued
In addition, the District also has the following insurance coverage:


Employee dishonesty coverage up to $1,000,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty,
forgery or alteration and theft, disappearance and destruction coverages.



Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within two years after
the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis. A combined total of $1 billion per
occurrence (pool limit), subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence unless otherwise listed in
declarations.



Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $100 million per occurrence (pool
limit), subject to a $1,000 deductible per occurrence, unless other specific object or peril as listed
on the declaration.



Public officials personal liability up to $500,000 each occurrence, with an annual aggregate of
$500,000 per each elected/appointed official to which this coverage applies, subject to the terms,
with a deductible of $500 per claim, and an annual pool aggregate of $8,500,000.



Workers’ compensation insurance up to statutory limits and Employer’s Liability Coverage up to
$5 million.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years. There
were no reductions in insurance coverage in fiscal years 2020, 2019, and 2018. Liabilities are recorded
when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated
net of the respective insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred
but not reported (IBNR). There were no IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several pronouncements prior to June
30, 2020, that has effective dates that may impact future financial presentations.
The following pronouncement implementation dates have been delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84
In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84 – Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.
This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other
employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial
funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent
arrangement that meets specific criteria.
The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.
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(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87
In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87 – Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.
The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by 18 months.
Earlier application is encouraged.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 89
In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89 – Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End
of a Construction Period. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period.
This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest cost incurred before the end of a
construction period. Such interest cost includes all interest that previously was accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of paragraphs 5–22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. As a
result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical
cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund.
This Statement also reiterates that in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources
measurement focus, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period should be recognized as
an expenditure on a basis consistent with governmental fund accounting principles.
The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively.
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(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 90
In August 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 90 – Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency
and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. It defines a
majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the equity interest meets the definition
of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an investment should be measured
using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary
activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent
fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.
For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should
report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the
equity interest should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This
Statement establishes that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results
in the government being financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the
government should report that organization as a component unit.
This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity
interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources
at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component
unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the component unit in that circumstance should
include only transactions that occurred subsequent to the acquisition.
The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2018; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the
provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a
component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. Those provisions should be
applied on a prospective basis.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91
In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91 – Conduit Debt Obligations. The primary objectives of
this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting
of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations; and improving required note disclosures.
This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with
conduit debt obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the
proceeds of a conduit debt obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.
Payments from third-party obligors are intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.
During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass
to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.
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(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91, continued
This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations,
organized by type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’
conduit debt obligations and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities
related to supporting the debt service of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about
the amount recognized and how the liabilities changed during the reporting period.
The requirements of this Statement were effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 92
In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and ﬁnancial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identiﬁed during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements.
The requirements of this Statement were as follows: (1) The requirements related to the effective date of
Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to
derivative instruments are effective upon issuance; (2) The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of
assets and those related to the applicability of Statements 73 and 74 are effective for ﬁscal years
beginning after June 15, 2020; (3) The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to
postemployment beneﬁt arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets
or liabilities are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2020; and (4) The requirements
related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government
acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective date has been postponed by one
year. Earlier application is encouraged and is permitted by topic.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93
In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93 – Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The
objective of this Statement is to address accounting and ﬁnancial reporting implications that result from
the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by: (1) Providing exceptions for
certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination provisions when an IBOR is
replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment; (2) Clarifying the
hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the reference rate; (3)
Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect the
assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable; (4) Removing LIBOR
as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest
rate swap; (5) Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate
swap;(6) Clarifying the deﬁnition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended; and (7)
Providing an exception to the lease modiﬁcations guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease
contracts that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend.
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(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 93, continued
The requirements of this Statement were effective as follows: (1) The removal of LIBOR as an
appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021; and
(2) All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2020; however, in light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effective dates have been postponed by one year.
Earlier application is encouraged.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94
In March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94 – Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor)
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by
conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital
asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some
PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement (SCA), which the Board defines in this
Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties; (2)
the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the operator is required to
provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that can be
charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service
utility of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement.
This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment
arrangements (APAs). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government
compensates an operator for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or
operating an underlying nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like
transaction.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96
In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 96 – Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use
subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the standards for
SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all
reporting periods thereafter. Earlier application is encouraged.

45

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(15) Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements Issued, Not Yet Effective,
continued
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97
In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 97 – Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans
other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans.
The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a
governing board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the
appointment of a voting majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially
accountable for defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee
benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement
84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts
that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67 or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are
effective immediately. The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial
reporting for Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes
of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit,
the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing
board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform, are effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged
and permitted by requirement as specified within this Statement. The Board considered the effective dates
for the requirements of this Statement in light of the COVID-19 pandemic and in concert with Statement
No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance.

(16) Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Contracts
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or
modification of water and wastewater facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The
financing of such construction contracts is being provided primarily from the District’s replacement
reserves and capital contributions.
Litigation
In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties.
After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any,
will not materially affect its financial condition.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, continued
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(16) Commitments and Contingencies, continued
COVID-19 Pandemic
In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus has spread around the world resulting in business and
social disruption. The coronavirus was declared a Public Health Emergency of International Concern by
the World Health Organization on January 30, 2020. The operations and business results of the District
could potentially be adversely affected by this global pandemic. The extent to which the coronavirus may
impact business activity or investment results will depend on future developments, which are highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity
of the coronavirus and the actions required to contain the coronavirus. The District has not included any
contingencies in the financial statements specific to this issue.

(17) Subsequent Events
Management is not aware of any other events or transactions, including estimates that provide additional
evidence about conditions which existed after June 30, 2020, which require disclosure as of February 8,
2021, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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Required Supplementary Information

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Schedules of Changes in the District’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Last Ten Fiscal Years*
As of June 30, 2020
2020

2019

2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost

$

Interest
Assumption changes
Changes in benefit terms

43,624

42,456

41,320

97,754

70,031

91,646

(603,686)

485,414

-

906,443

-

-

-

(44,151)

-

Experience (gains)/losses

(17,713)

-

-

Actual benefit payments from employer

(61,487)

-

-

Actual minus expected benefit payments

-

1,172

(42,438)

Expected minus actual benefit payments

16,420

-

-

Expected benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

381,355

554,922

90,528

1,955,811

1,400,889

1,310,361

$

2,337,166

1,955,811

1,400,889

Employer contributions as benefit payments $

61,487

-

-

Expected investment income

49,717

46,906

-

Investment gains/(losses)

12,145

30,630

-

Actual investment income

-

-

97,323

Total OPEB liability – beginning
Total OPEB liability – ending
Plan Fiduciary Ne t Position

Adminstrative expenses

(214)

Actual benefit payments from employer

(1,787)

(811)

(61,487)

-

-

Expected benefit payments

-

(44,151)

-

Benefit payments

-

-

(42,438)

Actual minus expected benefit payments

-

1,172

-

Other **

-

1,190

-

61,648

33,960

54,074

994,456

960,496

906,422

$

1,056,104

994,456

960,496

Net OPEB liability – ending

$

1,281,062

961,355

440,393

Covered payroll

$

1,984,705

2,305,138

2,156,274

64.55%

41.70%

20.42%

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position – beginning
Plan fiduciary net position – ending

Net OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered payroll
Notes to Schedule:
** 6/30/2017 FNP adjustment

*
The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a
10-year trend is compiled.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability – Last Ten Fiscal Years*
As of June 30, 2020

De scription
District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability

Me asure me nt
Date
6/30/2019

Measurement
Date
6/30/2018

Me asurement
Date
6/30/2017

Measure me nt
Date
6/30/2016

Measurement
Date
6/30/2015

Me asure me nt
Date
6/30/2014

0.03069%

0.02917%

0.02875%

0.02712%

0.02292%

0.02885%

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

$

3,144,639

2,810,828

2,851,601

2,346,813

1,573,256

1,795,052

District's Covered Payroll

$

1,984,705

2,305,138

2,156,274

2,095,489

2,075,823

1,907,011

158.44%

121.94%

132.25%

111.99%

75.79%

94.13%

78.02%

79.45%

78.83%

80.54%

86.11%

83.61%

District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll
District's Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Plan's Total Pension Liability

Notes:
*

The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a 10-year trend is compiled.
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Indian Wells Valley Water District
Pension Plan Contributions – Last Ten Fiscal Years*
As of June 30, 2020
Schedule of Pe nsion Plan Contributions:

Fiscal Year
2019-2020

Fiscal Year
2018-2019

Fiscal Year
2017-2018

Fiscal Ye ar
2016-2017

Fiscal Year
2015-2016

Fiscal Ye ar
2014-2015

380,872

317,222

261,417

232,521

170,777

136,504

(262,567)

(299,379)

(238,735)

(223,955)

(171,853)

(136,504)

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution's in Relation to the
Actuarially Determined Contribution

$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

118,305

17,843

22,682

8,566

Covered Payroll

$

1,984,705

2,305,138

2,156,274

2,095,489

2,075,823

1,907,011

19.19%

13.76%

12.12%

11.10%

8.23%

7.16%

Contribution's as a percentage of
Covered Payroll

(1,076)

Notes:
*

The District has presented information for those years for which information is available until a 10-year trend is compiled.
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Report on Internal Controls and Compliance

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Board of Directors
Indian Wells Valley Water District
Ridgecrest, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Indian Wells
Valley Water District (District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the District’s basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated February 8, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
And on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audits of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, (continued)
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fedak & Brown LLP
Cypress, California
February 8, 2021
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Committee Reports

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
REGULAR WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
THURSDAY, JANUARY 21, 2021 – 2:00 P.M.
TELECONFERENCE
500 W. RIDGECREST BLVD., RIDGECREST
Attendees: Stan Rajtora, David Saint-Amand, Don Zdeba, Renee Morquecho and Tyrell Staheli.

1.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.

2.

Committee/Public Comments
None

3.

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (IWVGA)
The Committee discussed the January 21, IWVGA Regular Board Meeting and actions taken.
Topics to discuss at the February IWVWD Regular Board meeting include:
 Groundwater Sustainability Plan Section 5.3 - Project No. 2 IWVGA Recycled Water
Program.
 Funding for the Transient Pool and Fallowing Programs.
 IWVWD to consider how to address the Replenishment Fee for water extracted for use
at the Navy Contractor Berthing Camp. The District charge per hundred cubic foot of use
would not cover the projected Replenishment Fee required to meet the needs of the camp.
The balance would have to be spread over the customer base and that is not an
acceptable option.

4.

Brackish Water Study
Wade Major has been reaching out to Mojave Pistachios (MP) to discuss the Brackish Group
performing an aquifer test using their wells. Wade has a call scheduled with MP later this afternoon.

5.

Alternate Water Sources
a. Wastewater Feasibility – Specific discussion pertained to a suggestion to consider an
agreement for wastewater from the Inyokern Community Services District treatment
facility. The amount of water available does not justify the cost of the infrastructure
required to make use of it. Committee agreed, that at this time, there is no feasible
wastewater option.
b.

6.

Capitol Core Group (CCG) – Nothing to report.

Future Agenda Items
None.

Special Water Management Committee Meeting
Thursday, December 3, 2020 – Page 2

7.

Adjournment
Meeting was adjourned at 2:50 p.m.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING
REPORT
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2021 – 2:30 PM
In accordance with the evolving Public Health Declarations, we are limiting public participation to online video
conference calls. The meeting was held via video conference at WEBEX.com.
Dial-in phone number: 415-655-0001
Meeting number: 126 612 1171
Password: water

Attendees: Stan Rajtora, Mallory Boyd, Don Zdeba, Renee Morquecho, Jason Lillion, Travis Reed and Ty
Staheli.
1.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 2:35 pm.

2.

Committee/Public Comments
None.

3.

Hometown Water Association/Dune III Mutual Water Company Consolidations: Update
Staff provided an update to the Committee on these consolidations. Currently, both are in the
planning stages. Hometown is a small system that requested consolidation and qualified for grant
funding as a disadvantaged community. The Rural Water Association is handling the grant
application paperwork along with assistance from Staff. The Planning Grant package is almost
complete. Dune III is a larger (36 connection) water company in the China Lake Acres area that
requested consolidation due to the age and health of the owner who has no other assistance to
maintain the system. The State is working through the Office of Water Programs Technical
Assistance program to pursue funding. The OWP is preparing a Work Plan, Financial Package and
Consolidation Agreement. They recently contracted with a consulting engineering firm to work on
the design for the project.

4.

Well 35 Pumping Plant: Update
The motors for the butterfly valves were installed last week. Painting has been delayed due to the
temperatures being too cold. The contractor is waiting for the arrival of gland seals for the eye wash
system. Once installed and the system functional, chlorine can be delivered to the site. Staff will
participate in a virtual meeting this Friday to discuss the remaining items and schedule. ENGIE sent
an update yesterday and indicated the structural design has been completed and the electrical design
is expected by the end of next week. Once received, it will be forwarded to the District for review.

Plant & Equipment Committee
February 2, 2021 – Page 2

5.

Post-Earthquake Repairs and CalOES Reimbursement: Update
The first phase of the Gateway booster project is complete and has been submitted to CalOES for
payment. The remaining repairs are the Gateway booster station replacement and the C-zone booster
roof replacement and seismic upgrades. The roof repair was awarded last month, and a preconstruction meeting will be held on Monday February 8th. The booster replacements are in the
design phase with plans to send out to bid by the end of this month or beginning of March for award
in April. Staff is working with Krieger & Stewart to prepare a report and some options to present to
CalOES. They requested more information since the District plans to move both booster stations at
the Gateway tank site, but only one was damaged during the earthquakes. Staff considers both
stations as one system that works together, but CalOES may not reimburse for moving both boosters.

6.

SCADA System Upgrade Project: Update
Installation is completed for all sites except Well 35 and Arsenic Removal Plant 1. Well 35 will be
completed once power installation is done and the Arsenic Removal Plants will be completed when
they are brought back online in the spring. The District is working with ATSI this week to finalize
the Site Acceptance Tests for all sites where installation and programming are completed. Currently
33% of the sites have passed the SATs.

7.

Arsenic Treatment Facilities: Update
Both plants are offline for winter maintenance. The District has communicated with three other
agencies regarding issues they have had with Filtronics filtration systems. Although the issues have
not been the same, the competitor has been more responsive, and staff is investigating one possible
solution to the media breakthrough problem.

8.

Solar Production: Report
The Committee reviewed the report provided by ENGIE Services for July 2020 through January
2021. The guaranteed savings during that time was $282,778.81 and actual savings was $243,962.46.
The total actual savings since July 2018 is $5,111,196.36.

9.

Future Agenda Items
None.

10.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 3:04 pm.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
FINANCE COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING
REPORT
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 2, 2021 – 3:30 PM
VIA WEBEX

ATTENDEES:
Morquecho

Mallory Boyd, Stan Rajtora, Don Zdeba, Ty Staheli, Jason Lillion, and Renee

1. Call to Order
The Finance Committee Meeting was called to order at 3:30 pm.
2. Committee/Public Comments
None.
3. Fraud Risk Discussion
Description: Discuss potential or actual fraud risks within the organization.
None to report.
4. Financial Statements January 31, 2020 (preliminary)
Description: Presentation to Committee financial reports and a graph depicting current revenue
and expense trends compared to budget and previous fiscal year actuals.
Estimated year-to-date revenues as of January 31, 2021 are $7,815,984 and expenses are
$7,506,679, therefore revenues exceeded expenditures by $309,305, which exceeds budget by
$1,399,299.
Staff presented the following spreadsheets, which compare January year-to-date actual to budgeted
revenues and expenses by category:

Finance Committee Meeting Report
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Indian Wells Valley Water District

Revenues vs. Expense
Actuals & Budget through Jan 2021 (Preliminary)
Budget

Actuals

Δ

Revenues
Total Water Sales
Total Water Service Revenue
Total Non-Operating Income
Capital Contributions
Total Revenues

5,925,051
159,920
90,585
318,213
6,493,768

6,315,532
213,931
117,672
1,168,848
7,815,984

390,482
54,012
27,087
850,635
1,322,216

Expenses
Water Supply
Arsenic Treatment Plants
Transmission & Distribution
Engineering
Customer Service
Field Services
General & Administration
Legislative
Depreciation
Non-Operating, Interest
Non-Operating, Miscellaneous
Non-Operating, Conservation
Non-Operating, Alternate Water
Total Expenses

654,213
162,798
1,055,714
226,686
231,855
333,826
1,293,469
65,050
2,041,667
908,410
441,756
75,272
93,044
7,583,762

650,986
116,136
1,085,205
176,341
155,347
233,984
1,508,054
56,370
2,041,667
628,247
754,010
7,509
92,824
7,506,679

-3,228
-46,663
29,491
-50,345
-76,508
-99,843
214,585
-8,679
0
-280,163
312,253
-67,763
-221
-77,082

-1,089,994

309,305

1,399,299

Net Revenue Increase (Decrease)
Capital Expenditures
- COP Funded
Debt Service Principle

3,109,906
1,699,082
543,765

1,541,077
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*Actual Revenues and Expenses are Estimated
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5. Delinquent Accounts Report
Description: Status report on delinquent accounts including financial impact.
Staff provided a delinquent account update. 201 accounts, for a total of $81,000, would be shut-off
in the absence of the Governor’s executive order. That number has decreased due to increased
outreach of the District to include; flow restrictor letters, door hangers, customer account
coversations.
6. Accounts Payable Disbursements
Description: Presentation to Committee of Accounts Payable Disbursements reports for Board
approval.
The Committee recommended approval of accounts payable disbursements totaling $704,405.63 as
follows:
Checks through:
Prepaid
Current
Total
7. Future Agenda Items
Board Workshop Assigned Items
8. Adjournment
The Committee adjourned at 3:47pm.

1/14/21
$ 173,682.59
257,100.94
$ 430,783.53

$
$

1/27/21 .
36,461.30
237,160.80
273,622.10

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION/EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 2021 – 3:30 P.M.
In accordance with the evolving Public Health Declaration, this meeting was held via video conference
through WEBEX.com
Attendees via teleconference: Chuck Griffin, David Saint-Amand, Don Zdeba, Ty Staheli, and Jason
Lillion

1.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m.

2.

Committee/Public Comments
None.

3.

Concurring in Nomination to the Executive Committee of the Association of California
Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA JPIA)
The Committee reviewed nominations to the Executive Committee of ACWA JPIA. The
Committee recommended the Board approve nomination of incumbent Randall Reed of
Cucamonga Valley Water District to serve for a term of four-years.

4.

Draft Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of February 8, 2021
The Committee reviewed the agenda and made no changes.

5.

Future Agenda Items
None.

6.

Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 3:42 p.m.

Approval of Minutes

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
JANUARY 11, 2021
The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Indian Wells CALL TO ORDER
Valley Water District was called to order by President Griffin at 6:01
p.m. via WebEx Teleconference.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Renée Morquecho.
DIRECTORS ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

DIRECTORS ABSENT:
STAFF ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

President Charles D. Griffin
Director Mallory J. Boyd
Director Stan G. Rajtora
Vice President David C.H. Saint-Amand

PLEDGE
ROLL CALL

Director Charles F. Cordell
Don Zdeba, General Manager;
Jim Worth, Attorney;
Renée Morquecho, Chief Engineer;
Ty Staheli, Chief Financial Officer;
Jason Lillion, Operations Manager;
Lauren Smith, Recording Secretary

AGENDA DECLARATION
AGENDA
Recording Secretary, Lauren Smith, reported that the agenda for DECLARATION
tonight’s Regular Board Meeting was posted on Thursday, January 7,
2021.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION
CONFLICT OF
President Griffin will abstain from voting on agenda item no. 7.B.1. INTEREST
Award of Contract:
College Heights Pump House Seismic Repairs and
Roof Construction, as his brother submitted a bid for the project.

None.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS

PUBLIC
COMMENTS

CONSENT CALENDAR
CONSENT
MOTION:
was made by Director Boyd and seconded by Director CALENDAR
Rajtora approving the Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Special
Board Workshop, December 14, 2020 Regular Board Meeting,
December 29, 2020 Special Board Meeting, and the January 7, 2021
Special Board Meeting.
Motion was carried, unanimously by the
following roll call vote:
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President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

MOTION:
was made by Director Boyd and seconded by Director Rajtora
approving payment of Accounts Payable totaling $1,208,376.38. Motion
was carried, unanimously by the following roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

PLANT & EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE
The Board reviewed the memorandum included in the Board packet on the AWARD OF
College Heights Pump House Seismic Repairs and Roof Construction. The CONTRACT:
Committee recommends awarding the contract to Wasson Roofing and COLLEGE
General Contracting in the amount of $48,977.00.
HEIGHTS
MOTION:
was made by Director Boyd and seconded by Director
Rajtora awarding the contract to Wasson Roofing and General
Contracting in the amount of $48,977.00. Motion was carried by
the following roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Abstain
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

Krieger & Stewart (K&S) is designing the Gateway and Salisbury Booster GATEWAY &
Station Replacement Project and it will be ready for bid by the end of SALISBURY
February/beginning of March.
The Committee recommends the Board PROJECT
authorize staff to proceed with preparation of plans, bidding
documents for the project, and to file the Notice of Exemption.
MOTION:
was made by Director Boyd and seconded by Director
Rajtora authorizing staff to proceed with preparation of plans
and bidding documents for this project and to file the Notice of
Exemption.
Motion was carried, unanimously by the following
roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:
ADMINISTRATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Clarification was made that the agenda showed
recommendation from the Committee.

Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

the

REQUEST
FOR
incorrect VARIANCE: ECC

The Board reviewed the memorandum, options available, and fiscal
2

impact on the District.
Environmental Chemical Corp (ECC) is under
contract with the Naval Facilities Engineering Command to supply
temporary housing at China Lake for temporary workers that will be
performing the emergency repairs due to the July 2019 earthquakes. ECC
is requesting relief from the payment of the Capital Facility and
Distribution System Fees that the District charges for all new
connections since the housing camp will be a temporary facility.
Instead, they propose a rental fee structure based on the connection
fees that are pro-rated to a monthly fee using a life span of thirty
years. The peak domestic use for the project is 120,000 gallons per
day. This is equivalent to a 1.5” or 2” domestic meter. The 6” meter
size requested is due to the need for fire flow.
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel and Larry Mead.
MOTION: was made by Vice President Saint-Amand and seconded by
Director Rajtora approving variance as written in the January
Board packet, Charge for the equivalent domestic use connection.
The domestic use for the project is equivalent to a 2” meter.
The Capital Facility and Distribution System fees for a 2” meter
total $46,871. But to also charge the Monthly Private Fire
Protection Service charge for a commercial 6” meter (currently
$183.59), and all other applicable fees. Motion was not carried
per the following roll call vote:

Motion does not pass.

President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Nay
Nay
Absent
Aye
Aye

After much deliberation, the Board agreed to add this item to the
Workshop agenda on January 27th. Staff was directed to develop a cost
comparison explaining the cost and usage difference between a 2” and
6” meter.
The comparison will also include the Replenishment Fee
recapture.
As a result of Assembly Bill (AB) 685 going into effect on January 1, COVID
2021, agencies were required to develop and implement a COVID-19 PREVENTION
Prevention Plan (CCP). Staff and legal have reviewed the CPP, which PLAN
meets the basic requirements at this time.
The CPP is subject to
change to remain up to date with state mandates, as well as
requirements imposed by the Center of Disease Control (CDC) and
California Department of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA).
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel and Renee Westa-Lusk
MOTION: was made by Vice President Saint-Amand and seconded by
Director Boyd approving the CPP as presented.
Motion was
carried, unanimously by the following roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:
3

Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

The Board discussed appointing a Representative and Alternate to ACWA JPIA REP
represent the District with the the Association of California Water AND ALTERNATE
Agencies (ACWA) JPIA Board of Directors.
Representatives are
encouraged to attend bi-annual Board of Directors meetings, currently
held virtually. The position of representative was previously filled
by Don Cortichiato who retired as a Board member last month.
Director Boyd expressed interest and will reach out to previous Board
member, Mr. Cortichiato, to gather more information on what the
position entails and decide if he is an appropriate fit. Item may be
added to the January 27th Board Workshop agenda if Director Boyd
decides to fill the position.
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY (IWVGA)
IWVGA
Vice President Saint-Amand attended the December IWVGA Regular Board
meeting and reported that he commented on the need for water
importation from Inyo County and to also include Mono County in
negotiations.
Don Zdeba commented on actions taken at the December 17 th IWVGA Regular
Board meeting, including:
 2021 IWVGA Budget created by Ty Staheli.
Staff is currently
revising the budget to incorporate comments made.
It will be
presented at the January IWVGA Board meeting
 Review of comments received from the State Water Resources
Control
Board
(SWRCB)
on
the
Authority’s
Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP)
 Approval of one month contract extension with Capitol Core Group
(CCG). Longer extension to be considered at the January meeting.
 Adoption of Ordinance NO. 04-20: Requiring the installation of,
use of, and reporting on metering equipment for groundwater
extraction facilities in the Indian Wells Valley Basin
 Approval of Variance Requests per Ordinance No. 04-20 submitted
by Mojave Pistachios, Pinon Water Co-Op, Owens Peak West Water
Co-Op, Desert Sands Water Co-Op, and Simmons Farm.
 Adoption of Ordinance NO. 05-20 Amending Ordinance No. 02-18:
Establishing
Groundwater
Extraction
Fees
and
the
Rules,
Regulations, and Procedures for their Imposition
Director Rajtora and Director Boyd concurred on the importance of
extending CCG’s contract, as the agency is extremely beneficial to the
Authority.
President Griffin expressed the need for the District to be heavily
involved in future grant funding discussions involving the Authority.
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel.
GENERAL MANAGER AND STAFF UPDATE
Don Zdeba updated the safety record to 211 consecutive days without a
recordable injury.
The District recorded three positive COVID-19
cases within 14 days last week which is defined as an “outbreak” by
the State Department of Public Health. Staff is following Center for
Disease Control (CDC) and Department of Public Health guidelines as
well as AB 685 requirements for informing and testing those who have
been in contact with the employees who tested positive. Mr. Zdeba is
4

GENERAL
MANAGER AND
STAFF UPDATE
SAFETY,
PRODUCTION &
NEW SERVICES

working with Ridgecrest Regional Hospital (RRH) on arrangements for
access to the Moderna vaccine for staff desiring the vaccination.
Metered water production at the wells for the month of December was
119,452,000 gallons (366.6 acre-feet).
The number the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) is using for comparison is metered
water through the distribution system, or consumption, and non-revenue
water, which is water lost to leaks, flushing activities, blow-offs,
etc.
For the month of December, the number is 113,681,000 gallons
(348.9 acre-feet).
The conservation results for December were
Consumption was down 15.1%
reported to the SWRCB on January 7th.
compared to December 2013. The 20% conservation target established by
the Board of Directors took effect June 2016.
Since that time, the
cumulative result remains at 22.7%.
Comparing the December conservation results in recent years, 2019 was
26.2% (2.16” precipitation), 2018 was 10.3%, 2017 was 4.6%, and 2016
was 13.6%.
The residential gallons for capita per day (R-gpcd) for
the month of December was 93.3.
There were eleven new connections added during the month of December.
There have been fifty-eight new connections during the fiscal year
that began on July 1st. The new connections have contributed $288,876
in additional revenue.
This is significantly more than the same
period last year when there were thirty-three new connections that
contributed $146,990.
Don Zdeba commented he participated in this month’s web-based PUBLIC
This was the first OUTREACH
Community Collaborative on January 5th.
Collaborative meeting conducted by Mayor Bruen.
He informed the
participants the District office was closed before the Christmas
holiday to walk-in traffic for the third time since the pandemic began
and will remain closed indefinitely due to concern of a surge in
spreading during the holidays.
He also mentioned the Replenishment
Fee approved by the IWVGA Board under Ordinance No. 03-20 in August
2020, became effective January 1st, and will be reflected on bills with
January usage.
The total unit charge for Authority fees is set at
$1.94 per HCF (hundred cubic feet) ($1.70 for the Replenishment Fee
and $0.24 for the Groundwater Extraction Fee).
Mr. Zdeba also
mentioned that Southern California Edison (SCE) was energizing service
at Well 35, and reported on the transition of the General Manager
duties for the GA to the City on an interim basis until Regional
Government Services (RGS) assumes staff duties for the GA.
The District has posted information on the Replenishment Fee on its
Facebook page including the link to the Bill Calculator which
customers can use to estimate how the Groundwater Authority fees will
reflect on their bills.
The Board reviewed the draft agenda.
asked to be sent to President Griffin,
January 20th. At which point the items
with the Board President to finalize the

Additional agenda items were BOARD WORKDon, and Lauren by Wednesday, SHOP AGENDA
will be compiled and reviewed
agenda.

The following updates were given on items assigned at the July 23, BOARD
WORKSHOP
2020 Special Board Workshop:
UPDATES
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Take a closer look at the IWVGA fees and provide a breakdown
UPDATE: The 2021 Pro Forma/budget was presented at the December
It has since been
17th Regular Board meeting of the IWVGA.
revised based on comments during that meeting as well as
received during the January 6th staff call. The revision shows
administrative costs to be funded by both the Replenishment Fee
and the Groundwater Extraction Fee, depending on the nature of
the expense. The revision is to be presented at the next IWVGA
Board meeting on January 21st.
Mr. Worth to research legal options regarding Will-Serve letters
and implementing fees
UPDATE: Mr. Worth commented this agenda item will be discussed
at the January 27th Annual Board Meeting Workshop.

Renée Morquecho reported work on site this last month has consisted of WELL 35
pulling wire, preparing, and chlorinating on-site water lines, doing UPDATES
punch list items, and site cleanup.
Last week, SCE was on site to
energize the facility. Once all needed equipment has been received,
the electrical can be finished and well startup performed. ENGIE has
had a delay in completing their electrical plans due to an issue with
their sub-contractor. At this point, it will be February before they
can mobilize on site.
The have indicated plans will be completed
within 3-4 weeks and mobilization in 8-10 weeks.
The District has received reimbursement for all items submitted. The POSTfirst phase of the Gateway Booster project is complete.
Staff was EARTHQUAKE
waiting for one more invoice from Krieger & Stewart for the pipeline REPAIRS
replacement phase, but that was received this morning so the project
will be submitted to CalOES for reimbursement. The remaining repairs
are the Gateway Booster Station replacement and the C-zone booster
roof replacement and seismic upgrades.
The roof repair bid was
approved by the Board earlier this evening and the booster
replacements will be out to bid end of February/beginning of March.
Ty Staheli reported that the estimated year-to-date revenues as of FINANCIAL
December 31, 2020 are $6,517,379 and expenses are $6,462,951. STATUS
Revenues exceeded expenditures by $54,428, which exceeds budget by
$896,972.
Mr. Staheli reviewed the report provided by ENGIE Services for July SOLAR
through December 2020 with the Board of Directors.
The guaranteed PRODUCTION
savings during that time was $247,853.64 and actual savings was
$213,844.77. The total savings since July 2018 is $4,867,233.90.
Mr. Staheli reported on the following conservation items:
CONSERVATION
 State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Water Waster Report
– In 2020, there were forty-two water waste reports received
with forty-two contacts made.
There were eight formal Second
Notices and two penalties issued.
Jason Lillion reported installation is complete for all sites except SCADA
Well 35 and the Arsenic Plants.
Well 35 will be completed once
construction is done and the Arsenic Removal Plants will be completed
when they are brought back online in the spring.
The District is
currently
performing
Site
Acceptance
Tests
(SATs)
to
verify
functionality on all completed sites.
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The Plants are offline for the winter. District staff has reached out ARSENIC
to other agencies regarding loss of media. They received one response TREATMENT
where the problem was remediated; however, that agency has a much
smaller plant.
Staff will continue to attempt to contact other
agencies facing these issues and if any remedy was found.
Mr. Lillion reported for the month of December, eighteen services were OPERATIONS
repaired and eleven were replaced. The NO-DES truck made twenty-nine
runs in December and filtered 239,440 gallons.
Since inception, the
NO-DES truck has filtered 7,856,585 gallons. Thirty-four valves were
exercised, resulting in a total of 1,063 valves turned for the year.

Director Boyd
improvements.

BOARD COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
complimented District staff on the

Director Rajtora commented on the potential
regarding the upcoming bills which will
Replenishment Fee.
He added the importance
public the District did not vote for the
Replenishment Fee.

WebEx

BOARD
meeting COMMENTS

public relations issue
reflect the increased
of reiterating to the
implementation of the

With no further Board or Public comments, President Griffin recessed
the meeting and adjourned to Closed Session at 8:06 p.m.
CLOSED SESSION
The meeting was reconvened in Closed Session at 8:22 p.m.
The meeting was recalled to Open Session at 8:52 p.m.

CLOSED
SESSION

No action was taken which would require disclosure under the Brown
Act.
ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was
adjourned at 8:53 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Smith
Recording Secretary
APPROVED: _______________________
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ADJOURNMENT

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
JANUARY 14, 2021
The Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Indian Wells
Valley Water District was called to order by President Griffin at 1:00
p.m. via WebEx Teleconference.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Recording Secretary Lauren Smith.
DIRECTORS ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

DIRECTORS ABSENT:
STAFF ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

President Charles D. Griffin
Director Mallory J. Boyd
Director Stan G. Rajtora
Vice President David C.H. Saint-Amand
Director Charles F. Cordell

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE
ROLL CALL

Don Zdeba, General Manager;
Jim Worth, Attorney;
Lauren Smith, Recording Secretary;

AGENDA DECLARATION
Recording Secretary, Lauren Smith, reported that the agenda for
today’s Special Board Meeting was posted on Wednesday, January 13,
2021.

None.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS
Lauren Smith read the following comments submitted by Mike Neel into
the record: I hope by now you are all getting your fill of these
lawsuits caused by the rushed and faulty decisions of the GA,
principally Mick Gleason along with the two mostly out of the Valley
board members who don't care about us. Remember, we don't have to
keep suffering the consequences of Gleason's foibles. The option to
withdraw from the GA and institute an elected GA is possible and lies
within your ability to make happen.

None.

BOARD COMMENTS/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

With no further Board or Public comments, President Griffin adjourned
the meeting to Closed Session at 1:05 p.m.

1

AGENDA
DECLARATION

CONFLICT OF
INTEREST
PUBLIC
COMMENTS

BOARD
COMMENTS

CLOSED SESSION
The meeting was reconvened in Closed Session at 1:12 p.m.

CLOSED
SESSION

The meeting was recalled to Open Session at 1:27 p.m.
No action was taken which would require disclosure under the Brown
Act.
ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was
adjourned at 1:28 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Smith
Recording Secretary
APPROVED: _____________________
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ADJOURNMENT

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING WORKSHOP
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
JANUARY 27, 2021
The Special Workshop of the Board of Directors of the Indian Wells CALL TO ORDER
Valley Water District was called to order by President Griffin at 9:02
a.m. via WebEx Teleconference.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Don Zdeba.
DIRECTORS ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

DIRECTORS ABSENT:
STAFF ATTENDING
VIA TELECONFERENCE:

President Charles D. Griffin
Director Mallory J. Boyd
Director Stan G. Rajtora
Vice President David C.H. Saint-Amand

PLEDGE
ROLL CALL

Director Charles F. Cordell
Don Zdeba, General Manager;
Jim Worth, Attorney;
Charles Krieger, Consulting Engineer;
Tim Parker, Consulting Hydrogeologist;
Renée Morquecho, Chief Engineer;
Ty Staheli, Chief Financial Officer;
Jason Lillion, Operations Manager;
Lauren Smith, Recording Secretary

AGENDA DECLARATION
AGENDA
Recording Secretary, Lauren Smith, reported that the agenda for DECLARATION
today’s Special Board Meeting Workshop was posted on Thursday, January
21, 2021.

None.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS
PUBLIC
Mike Neel commented on the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority’s COMMENTS
Wastewater Treatment Project.
CURRENT BUSINESS
At the January 11 th Regular Board meeting, the Board directed staff to VARIANCE
provide a cost analysis for the cost and usage difference between the REQUEST: ECC
2” and 6” meter in response to the variance request submitted by ECC
for the Naval Facilities Engineering Command temporary housing
project.
The Board reviewed the cost analysis and heard from Derrill Whitten
of Cornerstone Engineering Inc. and Scott Hayward of ECC.
1

MOTION:
was made by Vice President Saint-Amand and seconded by
President Griffin approving staff recommendation to charge the 2”
domestic connection fee and monthly rates along with the monthly fee
for a 6” stand alone fire service ($183.59 per month). Motion was not
carried by the following roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Motion does not pass. Variance not approved for ECC.

Aye
Nay
Absent
Nay
Aye

ECC will be charged the current Capital Facility and Distribution
System Fees for a 6” master meter connection, as well as the monthly
rate based on a 6” master meter.
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel. A comment letter was
also submitted by Mr. Neel and distributed to the Board via e-mail.
Director Boyd nominated himself to represent the District with the ACWA JPIA REP
JPIA Board of Directors.
Representatives are encouraged to attend
the JPIA Board of Directors bi-annual meetings.
MOTION:
was made by Director Boyd and seconded by Director Rajtora
appointing Director Boyd as the District’s ACWA JPIA representative.
Motion was carried, unanimously by the following roll call vote:
President Griffin:
Director Boyd:
Director Cordell:
Director Rajtora:
Vice President Saint-Amand:

Aye
Aye
Absent
Aye
Aye

BOARD WORKSHOP
Don Zdeba provided an overview on SB 606 and AB 1668, stating these SB 606
bills establish guidelines for efficient water use and a framework for 1668
the implementation of new upcoming standards, which must be in place
by July 2022. The legislation, as currently written, targets 55
gallons per person per day for indoor use.
The outdoor component
depends on local conditions.
ACWA has several Committees that meet
regularly to discuss these upcoming legislations, with quarterly
meetings held to report the progress of all sub-Committees. Mr. Zdeba
plans to attend and participate in the quarterly meetings.
With regards to the outdoor component, Department of Water Resources
(DWR) contracted Quantum Spatial, Inc. along with support from Eagle
Aerial Solutions to provide landscape area estimates for Single Family
Residence (SFR) and Multi-Family Residence (MFR) parcels for all urban
water retailers in California. The District received a summary report
for review and links to the data. The deadline for review is March 1,
2021.
The Board reviewed
classification.

examples
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the
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2
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The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel.
RECOMMENDATION:
Direct Finance Committee to discuss objectives to
consider when the District undertakes a new rate study.
The Board discussed the possible economic value of entering into an POSSIBLE
WITH
agreement with Inyokern Community Services District, specifically for AGRMT
the effluent from their wastewater treatment plant.
Due to the ICSD
minimal amount of water (20-30 acre-feet) the District would acquire
versus the costs, the Board decided not to move forward with this
item.
GRANT OPTIONS
AVAILABLE TO
RECOMMENDATION: Add link to current Southern California Edison Rebate DISTRICT
Programs to the District website. Board directed the Water Management
Committee to develop a list of possible options for grant funding to
be submitted to the IWVGA when they apply for grants, options that
would benefit District customers.
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel.

Mr. Zdeba reported staff will be attending a Bureau of Reclamation
webinar for small scale water efficiency projects.
The webinar will
provide information regarding what projects may be eligible and the
requirements for grant funding. Staff will report to the Board after
the February 3rd webinar.
RECOMMENDATION:
Finance Committee and legal to discuss a policy for WILL-SERVE
new connections, particularly regarding fees. Board directed staff to LETTERS
AND
draft a letter to the IWVGA requesting consideration of an exemption POLICY
for the fees and additional water associated with the temporary
Berthing Camp to house contractors involved with the construction on
base.
The Board heard public comment from Mike Neel.
Mr. Zdeba provided an overview on the Brackish Water Study Group, BRACKISH
explaining the Group received a grant to research the feasibility of WATER
producing brackish water as a source of in-basin water. The project
is in the later stages, with an aquifer test being one of the final
tasks. There is a possibility of the Group applying for another grant
to conduct a pilot test to treat the water and research costs
associated with treatment.
Tim Parker, consulting hydrogeologist, provided a brief on the
Brackish Water Project and how it may potentially benefit the basin.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff to address how brackish water would count
toward the 7,650 acre-feet of pumping within the framework of SGMA.
Mr. Zdeba provided a report on the status of the health of District DISTRICT
Wells, including when each well was installed, last serviced, and when WELLS
the pump was pulled.
Mr. Zdeba also commented that staff monitors
well levels monthly, as well as tracks water quality.
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President Griffin recessed the meeting at 11:31 a.m.
President Griffin recalled the meeting at 11:36 a.m.
Mr. Zdeba and staff provided an overview of the proposed District 2021 GM AND
goals for the 2021 calendar year.
Goals were included in the Board STAFF GOALS
packet.
RECOMMENDATION:
Investigate putting delinquent bills on the County
tax rolls as one option for recovering unpaid bills accruing because
of the Governor’s Executive Order prohibiting shutoff due to nonpayment during a pandemic.
Director Rajtora hopes to make the District’s involvement with the 2021 BOARD OF
IWVGA as positive and progressive as possible. He suggests the Board DIRECTOR
and staff provide input to him on how this may be achieved.
GOALS
Director Boyd’s goal is to continually try to understand the
challenges faced by the District and contribute to the best of his
ability. He further commented that he is an IWVGA Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) member, however not for the District, and suggests
working closely with Tim Parker and Director Rajtora to ensure
business does not go sideways.
Staff will review projects and tasks assigned at this Workshop and PRIORITIZE
update goals accordingly. Follow up will be provided to the Board at PROJECTS &
subsequential Committee and Board meetings.
GOALS
President Griffin and Director Boyd thanked the staff and Board for BOARD
COMMENTS
their participation and hard work put into the Workshop.
With no further Board or Public comments, President Griffin recessed
the meeting and adjourned to Closed Session at 12:31 p.m.
CLOSED SESSION
The meeting was reconvened in Closed Session at 12:47 p.m.

CLOSED
SESSION

The meeting was recalled to Open Session at 1:23 p.m.
No action was taken which would require disclosure under the Brown
Act.
ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was
adjourned at 1:24 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Lauren Smith
Recording Secretary

APPROVED: _______________________
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ADJOURNMENT

8.B.

January 28, 2020

178-1.1
5110-4.2

Mr. Don Zdeba, General Manager
Indian Wells Valley Water District
500 West Ridgecrest Boulevard
Ridgecrest, CA 93555
Subject:

Engineering Services Agreement
Current Fee Schedule

Dear Mr. Zdeba:
As you may be aware, we last increased our rates of compensation for providing services to the District
effective January 2020, and are hereby requesting that the District increase our compensation in accordance
with the rates indicated on the enclosed 2021 Fee Schedule. The proposed increase is necessary to account
for the rising costs of operations.
As in the past, we will exclude the 15% surcharge for outside services except in special circumstances
where we obtain District consent prior to application.
We propose to implement these rates immediately provided they are acceptable to the District. I am
available to review them with you at your convenience.
Sincerely,
KRIEGER & STEWART

Charles A. Krieger
CAK/amm
FS-IWVWD-21

Enclosure:

2021 Fee Schedule

Shipping/Mailing Address: 3890 Orange Street #1509, Riverside, CA 92502
Office Location: 3602 University Avenue, Riverside, CA 92501
Tel: (951) 684-6900  Fax: (951) 684-6986  www.kriegerandstewart.com

FEE SCHEDULE
2021
RATES
$/Hr.

CLASSIFICATION
Consulting, Design, Construction, Engineering, Environmental, Commissioning, and
Surveying Services (Office)

Principal III
Principal II
Principal I
Senior III
Senior II
Senior I
Associate III
Associate II
Associate I
Staff III
Staff II
Staff I
Technician III
Technician II
Technician I

290.00
275.00
248.00
234.00
220.00
206.00
199.00
193.00
186.00
180.00
158.00
138.00
117.00
112.00
107.00

Forensic Services
Principal Expert:
400.00
300.00
Associate Expert:
350.00
250.00

400.00
300.00
350.00
250.00

Computer Aided Design Services
Operator III
Operator II
Operator I

158.00
150.00
141.00

Surveying Services (Field)
2 Man Crew with Standard Equipment and Survey Truck
1 Man Crew with Standard Equipment and Survey Truck
3rd Man on Crew

295.00
228.00
137.00

Construction Services (Field)
Construction Engineer
Electrical Inspector
Construction Inspector:
Regular Time
Overtime:
Weekdays (8 hours to 12 hours)
Weekdays (More than 12 hours)
Saturday (12 hours or less)
Saturday (More than 12 hours)
Sunday and Holiday (Holidays: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day,
Labor Day, Veterans Day, Thanksgiving Day and the Day After, Christmas Day)
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199.00
176.00
139.00
166.00
200.00
166.00
200.00
200.00

FEE SCHEDULE
2021
(continued)
CLASSIFICATION

RATES
$/Hr.

Support Services
Secretary IV
Secretary III
Secretary II
Secretary I
Utility Clerk II
Utility Clerk I

110.00
106.00
95.00
84.00
78.00
77.00

Outside Services
Special Consultants and Purchased Services

Cost + 15%

Reimbursable Expenses
Vehicle Mileage
Travel and Subsistence, including Air Fare, Ground Fare, and Vehicle Parking
Specialized Rental Equipment
Copies, Delivery, Postage, Prints, Telephone, and Sundry Charges

0.72 $/Mile
Cost
Cost
Cost

The above rates are subject to change on or about January 1 each year due to salary and cost increases, except for
Construction Inspector and Survey Crew rates which are also subject to change if California Department of Industrial
Relations issues new prevailing wage determinations during the course of the year. A gasoline surcharge may be included in
response to increased prices; no such surcharge will be included on project invoices without prior notification.
TERMS OF PAYMENT:
Unless charge accommodations have been established beforehand, all accounts shall be prepaid. For accounts having charge
accommodations, payment in full shall be made within 30 days of date of invoice. Any amount unpaid within said 30 days
will be assessed a service charge of 1-1/2% per month (18% annual percentage rate), with a minimum charge of $1.00.
Accounts with a past due balance of 30 days or more are subject, without notice, to credit discontinuance and mechanic's lien
or stop notice. If it becomes necessary for Krieger & Stewart to initiate legal proceedings for the collection of any balance
due, the action shall be brought and tried in the Judicial Districts wherein Krieger & Stewart offices are located. Client
agrees that the court may award reasonable attorney's fees and costs of suit to the prevailing party.
2021-FEES (09/10/2020)
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2020-2021 KRIEGER & STEWART FEE SCHEDULE COMPARISON

Classification
Office
Principal III
Principal II
Principal I
Senior III
Senior II
Senior I
Associate III
Associate II
Associate I
Staff III
Staff II
Staff I
Technician III
Technician II
Technician I

2020 Current
2021
Rate
Proposed Rate

% Increase

$290.00
$267.00
$241.00
$227.00
$214.00
$200.00
$193.00
$187.00
$181.00
$175.00
$153.00
$134.00
$114.00
$109.00
$104.00

$290.00
$275.00
$248.00
$234.00
$220.00
$206.00
$199.00
$193.00
$186.00
$180.00
$158.00
$138.00
$117.00
$112.00
$107.00

0.00
3.00
2.90
3.08
2.80
3.00
3.11
3.21
2.76
2.86
3.27
2.99
2.63
2.75
2.88

$400.00
$300.00

$400.00
$300.00

0.00
0.00

$350.00
$250.00

$350.00
$250.00

0.00
0.00

Computer Aided Design Services
Operator III
Operator II
Operator I

$153.00
$146.00
$137.00

$158.00
$150.00
$141.00

3.27
2.74
2.92

Surveying Service (Field)
2 Man Crew with Equip. and Truck
1 Man Crew with Equip. and Truck
3rd Man on Crew

$295.00
$228.00
$137.00

$295.00
$228.00
$137.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

$193.00
$171.00

$199.00
$176.00

3.11

$135.00

$139.00

2.96

$161.00
$194.00
$161.00
$194.00
$194.00

$166.00
$200.00
$166.00
$200.00
$200.00

3.11
3.09
3.11
3.09
3.09

$107.00
$103.00
$92.00
$82.00
$76.00
$75.00

$110.00
$106.00
$95.00
$84.00
$78.00
$77.00

2.80
2.91
3.26
2.44
2.63
2.67

Cost + 15%

Cost + 15%

$0.72

$0.72
Cost
Cost
Cost

Forensic Services
Principal Expert
Testimony, Deposition, and Trial
Investigation and Preparation
Associate Expert
Testimony, Deposition, and Trial
Investigation and Preparation

Construction Services (Field)
Construction Engineer
Electrical Inspector
Construction Inspector
Regular
Overtime
Weekday (8 to 12 hours)
Weekday (More than 12 hours)
Saturday (12 hours of less)
Saturday (More than 12 hours)
Sunday and Holiday
Support Services
Secretary IV
Secretary III
Secretary II
Secretary I
Utility Clerk II
Utility Clerk I
Outside Services
Special Consultants and
Purchased Services
Reimbursable Expenses
Vehicle Mileage
Travel and Subsistence
Specialized Rental Equipment
Copies, Postage, Prints, Phone

0.00

8.C.1.

10440 Ashford Street, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730-2799
P.O. Box 638, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91729-0638

(909) 987-2591 Fax (909) 476-8032
John Bosler
Secretary/General Manager/CEO

January 27, 2021

Dear Fellow ACWA/JPIA Member:
On January 26, 2021 the Cucamonga Valley Water District Board of Directors adopted
Resolution No. 2021-1-2 nominating President Randall James Reed for the position of ACWA/JPIA
Executive Committee. We are formally requesting your support of President Reed’s nomination through
the adoption of a concurring resolution from your agency.
President Reed is well qualified to take on this leadership role in ACWA/JPIA as you will see in his attached
statement of qualifications, and he is committed to continuing the great work of providing quality insurance
and employee benefit services that ensure our agencies and ratepayers are receiving the most cost-effective
service possible.
I have attached a sample concurring resolution in support of his nomination, as well as his candidate
statement. The elections for ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee will be held this spring, and the deadline to
submit nominations is March 19, 2021. Should you desire to adopt a resolution or if you have questions
please contact our Executive Assistant to the Board, Taya Victorino at 909.987.2591 or
tayav@cvwdwater.com.
Thank you in advance for your consideration.

John Bosler
General Manaage/CEO

Attachments:
Resolution No. 2021-1-2 Nominating Randall Reed
Candidate Statement – President Reed
Sample Concurring Resolution

Randall James Reed
President

Luis Cetina
Vice President

James V. Curatalo, Jr.
Director

Mark Gibboney
Director

Kevin Kenley
Director

Randall James Reed
Statement of Qualifications
Association of California Water Agencies
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) Executive Committee
I am pleased to share with you my interest in continuing my service
on the Executive Committee for ACWA/JPIA. I am prepared and ready
to help lead the organization as we continue to uphold ACWA/JPIA’s
mission “to consistently and cost effectively provide the broadest
possible affordable insurance coverage and related services to its
member agencies.”
My experience with ACWA/JPIA began over a year ago when I was
appointed by the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to serve
as their ACWA/JPIA representative. In that same year I was elected
to the Executive Committee to fill a vacancy and eagerly rose to the
challenge. Now I am dedicated to ensuring the success of ACWA/JPIA.
We provide a vital service to the water community and they provide
a vital service to their communities. I know how important this organization is for the member
agencies who depend on our success.
I have served on the CVWD board of directors for approximately 18 years, and currently serve
as their President. At CVWD, we have taken full advantage of all the programs the ACWA/JPIA
has to offer to ensure our employees are working in the safest environment possible. Our board
of directors has also adopted a Commitment to Excellence pledge putting into place best
management practices which bolsters our effectiveness for loss prevention and safety.
I currently serve on the board of the Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts. In
my past roll as board president, I was focused on increasing my understanding of our members
needs so that I may know how to better serve and lead the association. I will continue to use
this same approach if re-elected to serve on the ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee.
Professionally, I am retired from a 32 year career in the wastewater management field as an
electrical and instrumentation supervisor. I earned a Bachelor’s degree in Information
Management Systems from California State University San Bernardino and have been an active
member in the Association of California Water Agencies, California Special Districts Association
and the California Water Environment Association. I'm a proud veteran of the United States
Marine Corp.
Thank you for allowing me to share my experience, leadership and knowledge. I look forward
to the opportunity to represent you and your agency. Please feel free to contact me directly at
(909) 240-1344 should you have questions or if you would like to support my candidacy.
Thank you in advance for your consideration,

RESOLUTION NO. 21-01
RESOLUTION OF THE INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER
DISTRICT, KERN AND SAN BERNARDINO COUNTIES,
CALIFORNIA, CONCURRING IN NOMINATION TO THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE ASSOCIATION OF
CALIFORNIA
WATER
AGENCIES
JOINT
POWERS
INSURANCE AUTHORITY (“ACWA JPIA”)
WHEREAS, this district is a member district of the ACWA
JPIA; and
WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the ACWA JPIA provide that in order
for a nomination to be made to ACWA JPIA’s Executive Committee,
three member districts must concur with the nominating district,
and
WHEREAS, another ACWA JPIA member district, Cucamonga
Valley WD, have requested that this district concur in its
nomination of its member of the ACWA JPIA Board of Directors to
the Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA:
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of
the Indian Wells Valley Water District that this district concur
with the nomination of Randall Reed, Cucamonga Valley WD to the
Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA.
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is
hereby directed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution
to the ACWA JPIA at P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661-9082,
forthwith.
All the foregoing being on the motion of Director SaintAmand and seconded by Vice-President Cordell, and authorized by
the following vote, namely:
AYES:
NOES:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.
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I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution is the
resolution of Indian Wells Valley Water District as duly passed
and adopted by said Board of Directors at a legally convened
meeting held on the 8th day of February, 2021.
WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said Board of
Directors this 8th day of February, 2021.
ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 8th day of February, 2021.

______________________________________
Charles D. Griffin
President, Board of Directors
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
Donald M. Zdeba
Secretary, Board of Directors
INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

(SEAL)
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8.E.7.

Indian Wells Valley Water District
Monthly Photovoltaic Production and Energy Savings Report

Year to Date Actual Production Compared to Projected Production

Period : 7/1/2020 12:00 AM - 1/31/2021 11:59 PM
Month

Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan

Monday, February 1, 2021

Total PV
Production
Actual (kWh)

205,795
324,735
280,515
280,741
241,795
204,144
217,405

Total PV
Production
Actual kWh)
(Cumulative)
205,795
530,530
811,045
1,091,786
1,333,581
1,537,725
1,755,130

Total PV
Total PV
Production
Production
Projected (kWh) Projected (kWh)
(Cumulative)
340,407
345,770
316,814
304,786
253,201
233,119
252,807

340,407
686,177
1,002,991
1,307,777
1,560,978
1,794,097
2,046,904

Variance

-134,612
-21,035
-36,299
-24,045
-11,406
-28,975
-35,402

Variance %

-40
-6
-11
-8
-5
-12
-14

1/2

Performance Against Guarantee

1 Month : 7/1/2020 12:00 AM - 1/31/2021 11:59 PM
From Timestamp

District Office
($)

7/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
8/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
9/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
10/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
11/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
12/1/2020 12:00:00 AM
1/1/2021 12:00:00 AM

1,310
1,115
876
742
557
457
517
5,574

Well 30 ($)
5,210
17,679
15,245
15,277
13,078
11,063
11,899
89,452

Well 31 ($)
5,425
5,610
4,836
4,825
4,156
3,535
3,752
32,139

Well 33 ($)
4,799
8,251
7,144
7,281
6,311
5,401
5,694
44,881

Well 34 ($)
4,158
3,841
3,391
3,467
3,030
2,612
2,769
23,267

Well 9 and 10
($)
8,368
8,513
7,385
7,306
6,370
5,222
5,486
48,650
Actual

Total Actual Savings Since July 2018:

Monday, February 1, 2021

Guaranteed
Savings ($)
47,027
47,768
43,768
42,106
34,980
32,205
34,925
$282,778.81

$243,962.46
$5,111,196.36

2/2

8.E.8.

SWRCB Water Waster Report

Dec-16
Jan-20
Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21
Aug-21
Sep-21
Oct-21
Nov-21
Dec-21
SUBTOTAL 2015
SUBTOTAL 2016
SUBTOTAL 2017
SUBTOTAL 2018
SUBTOTAL 2019
SUBTOTAL 2020
SUBTOTAL 2021
TOTAL
TOTAL PENALTIES BILLED
TOTAL PENALTIES COLLECTED

# of water
waste reports
received
11
2
1

# of contacts made
(written or verbal)
11
2

# of formal
warning actions
0

# of penalties
issued
0

1

0

0

378
406
70
60
56
42
1
1013

376
399
68
58
56
42
1
1000

40
28
10
7
8
8
0
101

10
3
4
4
1
2
0
24
$2,550
$2,500

The Mission of the

Indian Wells Valley Water District
is to deliver the highest quality water at the best
possible price while continuing to serve as respectful
stewards of the environment.
The Vision of the

Indian Wells Valley Water District
is to provide for self-sustaining water resources now
and for generations to come.
Board of Directors

